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University of Colombo Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences

20" January 2015

Deputy Auditor General,
Auditor General’s Department,
No:306/72, Polduwa Rd,
Baththaramulla.

" Dear Sir,

Revised Final Accounts — 2013

I here by submit Revised Final Accounts for University of Colombo, Institute for Agro
Technology and Rural Sciences , Weligaththa for year 2013, With following statements.

1. Statement of Financial position as at December 31% 2013
2. Production Trade And Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 31
December 2013 L
3. Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31% December 2013
4. Cash Flow Statement
5. Notes for Financial Statements
Thanking you,

iféctor

University of Colombo Institute For Agro Technology And Rural Sciences

B, e,

- .

N Bodm O mode, vOVTemO. Qaelasms ubu mﬂm, SburhASTL L. Weligatta New Town, Hambantota.
Tel : +94-47-3489085/+94-47-3620468/+94-47-3620468 Fax : +94-47-3620468 Email : inffo@uciars.cmb.ac.lk



10.

11.

12.

13.

CONTENTS

. Introduction

Financial Statements - Statement of Financial Position

. Financial Statements — Production, Trade & Statement of Financial

Performance

Statement of Changes in Equity

Financial Statements — Cash Flow

Notes to the Financial Statements

Schedule 01- Investments

Schedule 02 — Raw Material Stock As At 31.12.2013
Schedule 03-I Cost Calculation Report of WIP
Schedule 03- Work In Progressﬁ Stock As At 31.12.2013
Schedule 04 — Banana Plants Stock As At 31.12.2013
Schedule 05 — Unsettled Advance As At 31.12.2013

Schedule 06 — Schedule For Depreciation



Introduction

The establishment of the Institute for Agro-technology and Rural Sciences heralded an era of
affirmative action on the part of the Government of Sri Lanka to “uplift agro industry in' Sri
Lanka as a prestigious occupation through arming the rural community with modern knowledge
on agro-technology with information technology” ! :

The University of Colombo Institute of Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences (U CIARS) (here-
in-referred to as the Institute) was established as an Institute with blended distance mode of
teaching to provide opportunities of higher education to agricultural/farming community across
barriers of age, space, time and academic background, under Section 24 A and Section 18 of the
Universities Act no 16 of 1978 and the University of Colombo Institute of Agro technology and

Rural Sciences Ordinance No. 02 of 20082, The Order under Section 24 A came into operation
with effect from 23™ August 2008.

The Institute incorporated within its system the Magampura Agro-Technology and Community
Services Center in Weligatta, Hambantota affiliated to the University of Colombo in 2000 by the
UGC>. The Institute is located 250 km away from Colombo very close to the Colombo-
Kataragama main road. The Centre’s history dates back to 1998> through which the university
and researchers were able to build over the years close collaborative links with the community in
order to transfer technology / knowledge and know-how directly to the end-users and thereby
improve efficiency in agriculture and agro-industry in the region.

The Institute has a mandate to “providing, promoting and developing among persons presently
engaged in Agriculture and Agro-Technology, higher education in the discipline of Agro-
Technology and Rural Sciences™. It will cater to the changing individual and social needs by
taking higher education through a blended learning mode to the doorsteps of the rural
agricultural community who never dreamt of entering the portals of higher education. However
they have aspiration and potential to pursue higher education but could not utilize the
opportunities for personal, family or economic reasons. With the flexibility in the entry
requirements and choice of courses the Institute demonstrates that it is possible to impart quality
higher education using modern information communication technologies to learers of the
agricultural communities of poor rural sectors to pursue education at a pace and place convenient
to them and realize their academic, professional and social aspirations.

The will and commitment of the Institute to engage with society is evidenced by clear statements
in institutional objectives, strategic planning and, teaching and learning processes.

Organization and management

As the education system moves from elite to mass systems and from emphasis on teaching to a
focus on learning, students become more important actors — as primary clients, consumers, and
learners. This shift will require the establishment of appropriate organizational and management
mechanisms to handle those new roles and the new challenges that they represent. The
Organogram illustrates the organizational structure of the Institute.



Administrative Organization

The Institute is headed by the Director who is the Principal Executive Officer and the principal
academic officer and accounting officer of the Institute. The Director is also an ex-officio
member of the Board of Management, the Academic Syndicate and all Boards of Study of the
Institute, and presides at all meetings of the Board. The Director is also a member of the Senate
and brief the Senate on the academic performance of the Institute. The Board of Management is
the academic and executive body of the Institute. The Institution has the financial autonomy
from the University and the Board of Management is responsible for finances. Under the
Director is the Deputy Director. Director and Deputy Director are officers of the Institute.

It is the duty of the Director on behalf of the Board of Management to ensure that provisions of
the Act, the ordinance or any other instrument, are duly observed. It is also the duty of the

Director to give effect to the decisions of the Board and responsible for the maintenance of
discipline within the institute.

Academic Organization

The Academic Syndicate chaired by the Director has the control and general direction over
instruction, training, research and examinations of the Institute.

There are three Boards of Study chaired by the Director in respect of Research Higher Degrees;
Internal Academic Programs; External and Extension Programs. The Boards of Study have

control and general direction over instruction, training, research and examinations of th
Institute. :

There are three Departments of Study in respect of the disciplines of (i) Agro-Technology; (ii)

Food Technology; and (iii) Entrepreneurship, Agro-business and Rural Sciences. Each
Department of study is led by a Head.

The three Centers, Agribusiness and industry cell; the Science Park; Extension programs, are led
by a Coordinator.

Faculty and support staff of the Institute and from collaborating partner institutions and

universities assists the development of learning material, delivering and support of academic
courses / program.,



INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31ST 2013

(Figures adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

Assistant Bursar ( fARS)

Assistant Bursai

mstiure t - Agro  Tachnology & Rurat Scienc

University of Colembo
VWeligatta Hambantota

2013, 2012
Rs. Rs.
N.B.V N.B.V
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Bank Balances Note - 01 15,692,109 16,134,792
Stock Note - 02 4,346,416 3,996,429
Interest Receivable on Investments 144,293 128,723
RED Project Loan 779,619 1,152,459
Advance A/C 90,292 186,462
; 21,052,729 21,598,865
NON CURRENT ASSETS ,
Investments 33,594,075 20,232,617
Tissue Culture Laboratory Building - W. Note - 03 - 8,955,413
Building And Structures 18,087,596 1,132,423
Vehicles 5,525,280 7,109,540
Plant Machinery And Equipment 2,855,351 3,232,761
Fixtures and Fittings 278,759 314,926
Furniture And Office Equipment 1,706,999 1,104,306
Computers 686,356 483,689
Lab and Teaching Equipment 641,136 717,008
63,375,553 43,282,682
Total Assets 84,428,282 64,881,547
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Uoc Payable A/C - 927,306
Weligatte and RMU A/C - 1,148,144
Accrued Expences Note - 04 619,554 380,533
619,554 2,455,983
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deffered Income 370,000
Non Current Liabilities Note - 05 1,219,635 205,234
1,589,635 205,234
Total Liabilities 2,209,189 2,661,217
NET ASSETS 82,219,093 62,220,331
EQUITY
Capital Grant Spent 24,393,026 17,330,278
Capital Grant Unspent 42,641,977 36,730,728
Grant Spent 5,543,037 -
Restricted Funds Note - 06 - 220,303
Accumilated Funds 9,641,055 2,612,183
Institute Development Fund . 5,322,734
_ {Total Equity‘ . ’ 82,219,094 62,216,226
fied by Director (IARS)

For and on behalf of the Board of Management




INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
PRODUCTION , TRADE, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012
Rs. Rs.
Raw Material as at 01.01.2013 » 1,356,682 1,205,809
ADD: Purchases 178,160 341,648
1,534,842 1,547,457
Raw Material as at 31.12.2013 1,324,444 1,356,682
Raw Material Consumption During The year . 210,398 190,775
Direct Cost
Personnel Emoluments Note - 07 5,823,000 3,867,612
Prime Cost 6,033,398 ' 4,058,387
Add: Work In Progress as at 01.01.2013 896,464 221,584
Culture Bottles 32431
Less : Work In Progress as at 31.12.2013 871,674 896,464
Culture Bottles 31804 ' -
6,058,188 3,383,506
OVERHEADS
Water ' 79,374 77,749
Electricity : 960,903 874,858
Expenditure On Plant Sale 789,470 772,009
Cost Of Production 7,887,935 5,108,122
Number of Plants Produced during the year 2013 207883 207883 134,527
Unit Cost 37.94 38
Cost of production Transferred to Income And
Expenditure Account 7,887,935 5,108,122
Income from Sale of Plants 8,249,760 6,115,805
Cost of Sales
Banana plants as at 01.01.2013 8564 at
a unit cost of Rs.38/- 325,183 816,570
Add: Cost Of Production 7,887,935 5,108,122
‘ . ' 8,213,118 5,924,692
Banana plants as at 31.12.2013 20553
unit cost of Rs.38/- 779,865 325,183
7,433,253 5,599,509
Gross Profit 816,507 516,296



INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES

UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2013
(Figures adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

REVENUE

Gross Profit

Govt. Grant for Recurrent Expenditure
Generated Income

Interest Income

Amortization

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENCES

Personal Emoluments
Travelling

Supplies

Maintenance Expenditure
Contractual Services
Other Recurrent Expenses
Gratuity

Depreciation

TOTAL EXPENCE -
SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD

2013 2012
Rs. Rs.
816,507 516,296
11,400,000 7,921,000
Note - 08 2,246,495 1,167,270
3,260,238 2,362,280

2,615,004

20,338,244 11,966,847
Note - 09 5,229,601 4,389,632
Note - 10 116,241 333,000
Note - 11 1,273,995 249,646
Note - 12 1,502,400 431,415
Note - 13 1,381,019 1,646,008
Note - 14 1,572,346 903,707
Note - 15 14,401 205,234
2,946,339 1,613,311
'14,036,343 9,771,953
6,301,901 | 2,194,894




INSTITUTE OF FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2013

Attributable to owners of the controlling entity Total Equity
Contributed Capital |Other Reserves |Accumilated Surplus
Balance at 01.01.2013 54,061,006 5,543,037 2,612,183 | 62,216,226
Prior Year
Adjustment - Note 16 726,970 726,970
Restated Balance 54,061,006 5,543,037 3,339,153 | 62,943,196
Changes in Equity for
Year 2013
Deficit/Surplus For
the period 12,973,996 - 6,301,901 | 19,275,898
Balance at 31.12.2013 )
- :q@rﬁed Forward - 67,035,002 5,5{3_,037 ) ~_5541,055 | 82,219,094 |



INSTITUTE OF FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES

UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2013
: 2013
Excess for the year : 6,301,901
Add : Adjustments for items not involving movement of Funds
Depreciation 2,946,339
Provision For Gratuity 14,401
Amortization (2,615,004)
Interest Income (3,260,238) (2,914,502)
Operating excess before working capital changes 3,387,400
Increase in Stock - (349,987
Increase in Receivables 1,195,979
Increase in Payables (466,429)] - 379,563
Net cash flow from operating activities : . -3,766,963
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets ' (9,677,751)
Increace: in Investments {10,120,895)
(19,798,646)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Grant for Capital Expenditure 15,589,000
15,589,000
NET INCREASE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS (442,683)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 16,134,792
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period 15,692,109
Net Increase in Cash Equivalents (442,683)




Notes to the Financial Statement
Institute for Agro- Technology and Rural Sciences (IARS)
University Of Colombo

1. Significant Accounting Policies
1.1 Reporting Entity

IARS has been incorporated under the Ordinance No:02 of 2008 and gazette on 16™
October 2008. The main administration is at Weligaththe New Town, Hambanthota.
The Financial Statement of the IARS is prepared for the year ending 31/12/2013.

1.2 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical basis of accounting. Whereby
the transactions are recorded at values prevailing at the dated when the assets were
acquired, the liabilities were incurred and funds obtained in accordance with Sri
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Charted
Accountants of Sri Lanka. ‘

The firancial statements are prepared in Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the functional.
and presentation currency. Figures and phrases relating to tiie previous year have
been restated where necessary, for comparison with the current year presentation.

1.3 Assets and the bases of their valuation

1.3.1 Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Land is occupied to The Divisional Secretariat ,Lunugamwehera. It is rented
out by the Institute since 1998,for 30 years lease basis. Value of Buildings
And Structures is not shown in the Final Accounts. Only the cost of
rehabilitation is shown there. Valuation of Land And buildings is processing
with the assistance of Survey Department and Valuation Department.

Property Plant and Equipment and Lab & Teaching Equipments include the
items purchased out of government grant, research grants and internally
generated funds.

Property Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost of purchase together with
any incidental expenses thereon. The assets are shown at cost less
accumulated depreciation.



1.3.2

Subsequent Cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the institute and the cost of
items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Stocks

Stock of Raw Materials, Stock of Work in Progress , Stock of Tissue Culture
Banana Plats as at 31.12.2013 are measured at the lower of cost and Net
Realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling
expenses. Stock Valuation method is First In First Out (FIFO) method.
Depreciation

Depreciation has been charged to the Statement of Financial performance on
all Property Plant & Equipment and Lab & Teaching Equipments on the
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Description Estimated useful Life
e Building & Structures - 20 years
e Fixtures & Fittings - 10 years
e Laboratory & Teaching Equipment - 5 years
e Computers - 5 Years
¢ Furniture And Office Equipments - 10 Years
e Plant Machinery And Equipments - 10 Years

Depreciation is provided from the year of purchased and up to the year of sale
based on the period used, with full depreciation being provided in the month
of purchase and no depreciation being provided in the month of sale.

1.3.3 Amortization

Amortization is not provided for the period of 2008 to 2012. The relevant amount
has been amortized in 2013 Final Accounts. Because of that, surplus of year 2013 is
increasing by Rs.1, 213,665.13.

1.3.4 Gratuity

Provision is made in the accounts for retirement of gratuities at rates applicable under
the payment of gratuity act No 12 of 1983 although employees should complete a
minimum period 05 years of continued employment to qualify for Gratuity payment
under the act. Provision is made at the complete one year of employment on the
assumption that all employees indent to continue in employment to act last 05 years.



1.4 Income and Expenditure

1.4.1 Government Grant
The total Capital Grant received for the year was Rs.10.089Mn. The Recurrent
Grants that have been used for the operational activities for the year was
Rs.11.4Mn and have been recognized as revenue in the Income Statement.

1.4.2 Revenue Recognition

(a) Government Grants (Recurrent)
The Government Recurrent grants are recognized in the period in which
they are received.

(b) Course Fees
Course fees are recognized over the period of instruction. Where adequate
information is not available to make such allocation to different financial
periods, fees are recognized as income on a cash basis.

(c) Investment Income

Interest income received out of Investment is accounted on accrued basis.

1.5 Receivables
~Receivables are stated at the amounts that they are estimater? to realize. -

1.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise bank balances.

1.7 Current Assets

Current Assets classified in the balance sheet are those which will be recovered
within one year after the Balance Sheet date.

1.8 Current Liabilities
Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the balance sheet are those that fall due
for payment within one year from the Balance Sheet date. All known liabilities have
been accounted for in preparing the final statements.

1.9 Cash Flow Statement
The Cash flow statements have been prepared using the “Indirect Method” for the

purpose of the statement of Cash flow. Cash & Cash equivalents are comprised bank
balances.



Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Naote - 01

2012

2013 [
Bank Balances Rs.
(07-1001-4-6432005 - Plant Sale Collection Account
'8 Hambanthota 237,480 2,427,215
007-1001-3-0005888 - Cetificate Course Collection Ac 1,330,700 2,160,405
07-2-017-9-0005272 Avurudu :
Ganudenu [thurumpath 53,454 53,454
007-2-018-9-0005272 Avurudu
Ganudenu [thurumpath ' 53,454 53,454
007-1001-2-0005006 - Gov. Grant Current Account
13 Hambanthota 11,800,862 11,440,264
007100130012515 Farmers Trust Fund
1,010,000
007100236432005Generated Income Current Account 1,206,158
15,692,109 16,134,792
Note - 02 2013 | 2012
Stocks Rs.
Raw material 1,324,444 1,356,682
Work In Progress 871,674 896,464
Banana Plants 779,865 325,183
Consumable stock 1,370,432 1,418,099.23
4,346,416 3,996,429
Note - 04 2013 | 2012
Acerued Expences Rs.
Fleetriciry 101,412, 107,378
Waldr 11,167 9,626
Telephone 92,944 3,074
Sularies 76,225 36,875
PP 70,590 112,000
ETF 21,568 19,036
Holiday Payments 3,000
Domestic Travelling 3,900
F'uel & Lubricant 9,243
Muaintenance - Buildings 24,600
Maintenance - Vehicles 11,480
UPK 27,265
I*ension 5,406
Supplics-Chemicals & Glass ware 51,000
Over Time 12,275
{’xamination Expenditure 5,920
Printing And Advertising 51,408 42,819
Iield Visit Expenditure 900
{’ouncil And Committees 11,200
I'xpenditure On Extension Projects 12,900
I-xpenditure on Certificate Course 36,825
Prior Year Expenditure 7,200
{xpenditure On Plant Sale 10,800
‘{’vurse Fee Installments 5,000
University Executive officers Association 1,200
PAYEE TAX 3,851 .
619,554 380,533




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 05 2013 | 2012
Non Current Liabilities Rs.
Provision For Gratuity 219,635 205,234
Mr.W.M.K.Upuldeniya
Farmers Trust Fund 1,000,000
' 1,219,635 205,234
Note - 06 2013 . | 2012
Grants - 2013 Rs.
How can small Countries in South Asia - 220,303
- 220,303
Note - 07
2013 | 2012
Personal Emoluments Rs.
Salaries & Wages 5,089,700 3,144,400 |
E.PF 497,040 628,880
E.T.F. 124,260 94,332
Over Tisae Payment 112,000.00- S
5,823,000 3,867,612
Note - 08 2013 [ 2012
Generated Income Rs.
Certificate Course - IARS 2,230,140 1,151,000
Tissue Culture Banana Plant Sale Production Accq 8,249,760 -
Other Income 16,355 16,270
10,496,255 1,167,270
Note - 09
2013 | 2012
Personal Emoluments - Rs.
Salaries & Wages 3,775,255 3,044,200
E.P.F 855,152 | 565,113
UPF 215,294 88,667
Pension 67,906 48,122
E.TF. 119,612 100,974
Over Time Payment 34,883 53,236
Other Allowances 161,500 489,319
5,229,601 4,389,631




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 10
Travelling

Domestic
Foriegn

Note - 11

Supplies

Mechanical and Electrical Goods
Stationery & Office Requisites
Fuel and Lubricant

Chemicals And Glass Ware
Other

Note - 12
Maintenance Expenditure

Plant, Machinery Equipment
Furniture

Vehicles

Buildings & Structures

Other

Note - 13
Contractual Services

‘Transport .
Postal & Telecommunication
Electicity

Water

Cleaning Service

Rates, Taxes & Local Authorities
Other Contractual Services
Printing, Advertising etc.

2013 | 2012
Rs.
116,241 225,895
- 107,106
116,241 333,001
2013 | 2012
Rs.
171,938 3,075.00
176,876 | 125,178
448,345 117,732
178,160 -
476,836 3,661
1,273,995 249,646
2013 l 2012
Rs.
306,274 71,890
126;000
500,611 229,649
540,255 93,105
35,260 36,771
1,502,400 431,415
2013 | 2012
Rs.

31,340 11,400
389,469 109,399
211,300 483,107

79,374 36,872

- 3,500

- 120,000
142,930 193,816
526,606 687,915
1,381,019 1,646,009




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 14
Other Recurrent Expenditure 2013 | 2012
Rs.

Awards & Indeminities 54,028

Special Services - Board Meeting & Committs 324,618 86,966

Workshops, Seminars 254,547 109,471

Bank Charges 6,469 7,780

Expenditure on Extension Courses 59,263 371,083

Expenditure on Certifictre Courses IARS 548,832 226,236

Expenditure on Plant Sale 789,470 -

Staff Development 19,925 -

Expenditure on RED 119,708 -

Expenditure On Mushroom Sales 27,985 768

Acting Director's Fee 82,000 -

Examination Expenditure 27,470 34,500

Field Visit Expenditure 74,980 12,875

Other 26,550 -

1,572,346 903,707
Note - 15
Gratuity
Calculation Of Gratuity
Last Month
Gratuity

Employee Employee |Date of Period of service|applicable Gratuity

Name Number |Appoinment [as at 31.12.2013 |Salary (Rs) Amount (Rs)

WMK

Upuldeniya C007183 01.06.2000 13 Years 33,790.00 14,401.00

Note - 16

Prior Year Adjustment for Accumilated Surplus

This total Amount included follwing income and expenditure

Adjusted Income

6/28/2011 Rec 000785 Cancelled Cheque 7,360

6/28/2011 Rec 000786 Cancelled Cheque 196,560

7/28/2011 Rec 000787 Cancelled Cheque 2,900
'{10/7/2011 Rec 000788 Cancelled Cheque 720

11/15/2011 Rec 000789 Cancelled Cheque 5,000

12/31/2013 JUR RMU 79,534

12/24/2013 Rec 000623 UOC - RMU 442,096

Adjusted Expenditure

12/31/2013 JUR TIARS70 Accrued Expences (7,200)

726,970




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 03
Non Current Assets
WIP Tissue |Building Vehicles Lab and Computers Plant Machinery & |Fixtures and |Furniture and Total
Description Culture Lab |& Structures Teaching Equipment fittings Office Equipment
|Non Current Assets :
Balance as at 01/01/2013 8,955,413 1,144,218 7,921,300 1,028,132 705,880 3,583,487 361,665 1,336,137 | 25,036,232
Additions/ Improvements (8,955,413) 17,374,704 - 148,702 369,500 - - 740,257 9,677,751
|Disposals '
Total - 18,518,922 | 1,176,834 3,583,487 361,665 2,076,394 | 34,713,983
Provision for Depreciation
Rate of Depreciation 5% 20% 20% 20% 10% 10% 10%
IBalance as at 01/01/2013 - 11,794 811,760 311,124 222,191 350,727 46,739 231,831 1,986,165
Depreciation for the year - 419,532 1,584,260 224,574 166,834 367,879 36,166 147,094 2,946,339
Acc dep for Disposals : -
Balance as at 31/12/2013 - 431,326 2,396,020 535,698 389,024 728,136 82,905 369,395 4,932,504
- 18,087,596 5,525,280 641,136 686,356 2,855,351 278,759 1,706,999 | 29,781,478

INet Book Value- 31/12/2013




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Short Term Investment Schedule As At 31.12.2013

EST NEW INTERES INTERES [MA
ME RATE DEPOSITS |NO T NET T RK
NT DATE OF DATE OF OF DURING OF |INTEREST |RECEIV [INTEREST |RECEIV |S/ |INVESTMEN
INS INVESTMEN |[MATURIT INTER THE YEAR |DA (RECEVED |ABLE RECEIVED |ABLE WI |[TS AS AT
TIT |DEPOSIT NO T Y PERIOD EST |AMOUNT (2013 TE |FoR2013 2012 FOR 2013 |FOR 2013|TH |31.12.2013 RS
|086-6001-00006309- |12/20/2012 3/20/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006310- [12/20/2012 3/20/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006311- 112/20/2012 20.03.2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7,433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006312- |12/20/2012 20.03.2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 1,145,004 11 153,032 5,004 148,028 3,716 | - 1,298,036
076-6001-00002440- 111.08.2011 11.08.2013 |12 MONTHS | 10.5%| 1,080,000 142 135,000 52,521 82,479 49,632 | - 1,215,000
086-6001-00006474- 112/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006475- 112/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006476- |12/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006477- |12/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%] 3,292,500 9 526,800 12,990 513,810 10,359 | - 3,819,300
086-6001-00006484- 112/27/2012 27.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 1,260,088 4 201,614 2,209 199,405 1,762 | - 1,461,702
007-6001-00003168- 117.12.13 3/17/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.0% 1,755,421 | 14 43,765 - 43,765 6,210 | # 1,799,186
007-6001-00003169- {17.12.13 17-3-14 3 MONTHS 9.0% +1,639,424 | 14 40,873 - 40,873 5,800 | # 1,680,297
007-6001-00003170- |17.12.13 17-3-14 3 MONTHS 9.0% 6,726,050 | 14 167,691 167,691 23,797 | # 6,893,741
20,232,617 | 10,120,895 3,240,564 | 128,723 | 3,111,841 | 144,293 | # 33,594,076




UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO-TECHNOLOGY & RURAL SCIENCE

Chemicals
DEPARTMENT : AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 Date of Checked : Time of Check :
proe Full Description of Ariiles Stock, | Unit Rate Verfied Balance Shortage Excess Trews 8o be condemnd obsolete Hm [Remarks
No. Book.
Inventory Book Balince
Folio Quantity _
[Quantity | Value
|rs. o IRs. {Cs JQuantity  Jvalue Quantity  [Value Quantity  Jvalue
1]Ammonium Nitrate 1|ikg 6608 00]16.3350kg ]16.3350kg 107941] 68
2]Ascorbic Acid 3li50g 1848] 00)35g 35g 431] 20
3 100g | 4500 oojioog 100g 4500} 00
4|Boric Acid 51100g 798} 00}307.64g 307.64g 24548 96
${Calcium Chloride Thkg 2472§ 00]268g 268g 662] 49
6 lkg 3696] 00]4kg dkg 14784} 00
7 lkg 2688) 00]1ke 1kg 2688} 00
8 9}12¢g 546| 00j378.952g {378.952g 17242} 32
11j12g 294] 00]508.95 508.95 12469} 27
13Q24g 798] 00j434g 434g 14430} 50
15§11 343§ 00j1271 1271 43561} 00
17}5g 3136] 00}4.8688 4.8688 3053 71
19}500g 1740] 0o]1500g 1500g s220] oo
soog | 2320] oo]s00g 500g 2320{ 00
21 1451 0048891 18891 128905§ 00
23}12g 728| 00]328.50g 328.50g 19928) 99
25)12¢ 475§ 00]173.34¢ 173.34g 6861 37
27|12 700] 00J31.50¢ 31.50g 1837 49
29§500g 10804 00}12.275kg 12.275kg 26514] 00
500g 2133} 00}5kg Skg 21330] 00
3ifasog | 1100] 0of374g 374g 1645) 60
250g 1344§ 00j250g 250g 1344} 00
500g 1000] 00}500g 500g 1000} 00
3|12g 1080] 00]554.52 554.52 49906| 30
37|250g 1500] 00§481.2g 481.2g 2887] 20
250g | 2016] 00j250g 250g 2016} oo
39]500¢g 1680] 00]943.58 943 5g 3170f 16
500g 2240' 00R2kg 2kg 8960} 00
41)500g 1080] 00}1459g 1459g 3151) 44
43]500g 9419} 00}454.64g 454.64g 8564| 69
45]500g 2100] 004395.28¢ 395.28g 16600 17
47]25g 1080} 00§184.7g 184.7g 7919 4
49]sg 4900] 00]4325g 4.325g 4238] s0
sifsg 2250] 0o]og 9g 4450] 00
53|58 1800| 00j23g 238 8280] 00
551500 15201 00| 400g 1216 UUI
37} Adenine Sulphate s7l2s0g | 3600 00j10.25 1025 147] 60
38} Ammonium Sulphate 59]500g 1120] 00]500g 500g 11201 00
39]Potassium Nitrite 61§500g 3040] 00]1kg kg 6080] 00
40]Mayo Innositol 63]258 1350] 00j11g g 594] o0
41]Buffer Tablets-pH 07 65§10 No's 880] 00}40 40 35201 00
42|Buifer Tablets-pH 04 67]10 No's 660] 00|17 17 1122§ 00




Trem Full Description of Amticles Stock, | Unit 3 Verificd Balance Shonay Exccess Trems to be Ttem JRemark
No. Book,
Inventory Book Balance
Folio Quantity _
Quantity | Valus
[rs. o= Irs. Cis. [Quantity  [Value Quantity  [Value Quantity  [Value
43{pH 6.8 Solution 69]500mi 1140 00}1301 1301 296} 40
44|KCL Solution 711500ml 1680] 00§370ml 370ml 1243} 20
45 iclly Moss 73| 1kg 3700} 00]60kg 60kg 2220001 00
46 kg 4233| 33}10kg 10kg 42333] -30
47]Cotton Wool 75500 425] 00}64.5Kg 64.5Kg 54825] 00
48jRubber Band 77|k 890] 00}59Kg 59Kg 52510} 00
49)Zealing Wrap 7911 Roll | 1700} 003 3 5100] 00
50 1 Roll 1900} 00§70 70 133000] 00
51§12 Poly Propelcen 83]ikg 2251 00]13.4Kg 13.4Kg 30154 00
52|6" Polypropelene 85]lke 330] 00}102kg 102kg 33660] 00
53 kg 300} 00§62.55kg |62.55kg 18765} 00
54]36" Poly Tunnel 871k 330| 00192Kg 192Kg 63360} 00
55 1kg 280} oof2ss 7Kg [258.7Kg 72436] 00
56))am Bottles ) 89} pkt 1069] 65}55 55 58830 75
57}Jam Bottles Lids Plastic 91 12§ 00]240 240 2880f 00
Total 13244431 83
Store Keeper of Office in Charger :
of Stores or Inventory Name $.V.G.N. Priyadarshani Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature : . Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date Net Shortages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR
. 2. H. Rohanadheera RA
3.N.P. Videnapathirana ~ CC

% .




Sucker
Bottle
Lid
Chemicals

20
16.71
8.75
1.61

se
1

47.07
So

S0
S1
S2
S3
sS4
S5
S6
S7
S8
S9
S10
S11
S12
S13

16.71
8.75
1.61
s1
1
27.07
Sucker
Jam Bottle
Jam Lid
Chemicals

16.71
8.75
1.61

27.07
20
16.71

1.61

47.32
47.07
74.14
51.78
32.82
28.29
2742
27.18
27.11
27.08
27.08
27.07
27.07
27.07
27.07

27.46
27.46

Institute for Agro-Technology And Rural Sciences

University Of Colombo
Cost Calculation Report
Work In Progress Stock As At 31.12.2013
16.71 . 16.71 16.71 16.71 16.71 16.71
8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75
1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61
5 7l §5 5 4 58
9 27 81 243 729 2187

27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07

16.71
8.75
1.61

6561
27.07

1671  16.71 16.71
8.75 8.75 8.75
1.61 1.61 1.61

sto si1 s12
19683 59049 177147
2707 2707  27.07

16.71
8.75
1.61

813

531441

27.07



UNIVERSITY OF CO" “MBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECF  OLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCE

STOCK OF WORK IN PROGRESS

DEPARTMENT: - AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2013 Date of Check: 31.12.2013
Time of Check:
Item No. Full Stock, Unit Rate Book Verified Balance ghon.Ege Excess ftems to be condemd obsolete item Remarks
Description off Book, Batance ;
Articles Inventory Quantity
Folio
: ST
Rs. Cts. _ Rs. | Cis. | Quantity jVaiu Quantit] Value Quantity Value
. . y

11so 40 47.07 1,883 | -

2181 14 74.14 1,038 | ~

3|s2 9 51.78 466 | -

4lsa 39 3282 : 1,280 | -

51s4 50 2829 1,414 | -

6lss 122 2742 3345 | -

7lss 459 27.18 124771 -

8ls7 920 27.11 24940 | -

olss 2306 27.08 62,454 § -

10]s9 1888 27.08 SLIBY -

11§s10 3027 27.07 81948 | -

lsit 442 27.07 11,966 | -

13lsiz2 451 27.07 12,209 -

14]513 0 27.07 - -

I 22037 2746 605,136 | -

16|R2 0 27.46 - -

31804 0] 871,674 ] -

Store Keeper of Office in :
Charger of Storesor ~ Name : S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature ) Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date : Net Shoreages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR
: 2. H. Rohanadheera RA

3. N.P. Vidanapathirana CcC



* UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCE |

DEPARTMENT:

STOCK OF TISSUE CULTURE BANANA PLANTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2013

Date of Check: 31.12.2013

Time of Check:
ltem No. Full Stock, Unit Rate Book Verified Balance Shortage Excess Tlems o be condemd obsolete item ] Remarks
Description of] Book, Balance
Articles Inventory Quantity
Folio
JQuantity ia!ue
Rs. Cts. Rs. Cts. ]| Quantity [ Valu Qua | Value Quantity Value
¢ ntity .
1|Embul 37 94 16906 16906 641,414
2|Koli 7| o4 u23 1123 42,607
3|DC 37 94 2524 2524| 95,761
L1
20553 779865
Store Keeper of Office in
Charger of Storesor ~ Name : S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani . Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature : . Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date Net Shortages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR

2. H. Robanadheera RA
3. N.P. Vidanapathirana CC




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Unsettled Advance Schedule As At 31.12.2013

Date V/No Derscription Amount

24/12/2013 74A 767524 . - |H.Rohanadeera 10,000.00
10/11/2013 542 664259  |H.R.S.D.W.Alwis 26,000.00
10/9/2013 530 664247  [H.R.S.D.W.Alwis 23,295.50
4/212013 190 745848  |A.A.S.Chinthanie(Festival Advance) 1,000.00
2/28/2013 102 745765  |HR.S.D.W.Alwis 30,000.00

Total

90,295.50




Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Lab And Teaching Equipment

Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati| Depreciation
Name Capitalized Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/1/2013 1,028,132 | 11.7419355 20% 205,626
Additions/ Improvements Water Distillation Unit 8-May-13 148,702 | 7.64516129 20% 18,948
Total 1,176,834 224,574
Computers
Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
Capitalized Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2012 705,880 12 20% 141,176
Additions/ Improvements Computer 6/24/2013 186,000 6 20% 18,600
Laptop 11/19/2013 123,500 1 20% 2,058
Laptop 8/5/2013 60,000 5 20% 5,000
Total 1,075,380 166,834
Fixtures And Fittings
Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati| Depreciation
Capitalized Amount (Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2013 361,665 12 10% 36,166
361,665 36,166

Total




Institute for Agro Technology anﬁ Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Furniture And Office Equipments

Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
Capitalized Amount ( Months) | onRate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2013 1,336,137 12 10% 133,614
Additions/ Improvements Computer Chair 5/21/2013 4,750 7 10% 286
Computer Table 5/21/2013 3,400 7 10% 205
Computer Chair 5/30/2013 9,750 7 10% 564
Computer Table 5/30/2013 9,980 7 10% 577
Office Table 5/30/2013 13,520 7 10% 781
Office Chair 5/30/2013 9,980 7 10% 577
Conference Semi circle Table + 10/10/2013 84,481 3 10% 1,862
Conference Extension Table ©10/10/2013 123,813 3 10% 2,729
OCL 003 mid Back Chair . 10/10/2013 174,563 3 10% 3,848
OCH 014 High Back Chair 10/10/2013 9,428 3 10% 208
Executive Table 11/19/2013 66,578 1 10% 752
Executive Chair 11/19/2013 10,508 1 10% 119
Clerical Table 11/19/2013 6,219 1 10% 70
Computer Chair 11/19/2013 3,220 1 10% 36
Filling Cabinet Steel 04 drawers 11/19/2013 10,360 1 10% 117
Writing Table 11/19/2013 18,768 1 10% 212
Digital Photocopier (Toshiba e-
studio195/duplex Printing) 4/9/2013 133,280 8.58 10% 9,530
Computer Chair 11/19/2013 22,785 1 10% 257
Writing Table 11/19/2013 24,876 1 10% 281
Total 2,076,394 156,624




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Buildings And Structures
! Depreciatio
Date of _ _ nPeriod | Depreciati| Depreciation |
Capitalized Amount (Months) | on Rate Amount
1/0/1900 1,144,218 12 5% 37211
1:2472013 97,510 11 5% 4469
1/24/2013 27,020 11 5% 1238
2/7/2013 5,400 11 5% 237
2/7/2013 13,200 11 5% 580
2/7/2013 1,350 11 5% 59
2/7/2013 14,850 11 5% 653
2/7/2013 18,150 11 5% 798
2/7/2013 5,850 11 5% 257
2/7/2013 314,944 11 5% 13842
2/8/2:13 15,935 11 5% 698
3/1/2013 2,000 10 5% 82
3/11/2013 24,600 10 5% 975
3/11/2013 9,000 10 5% 357
3/13/2013 11,100 9 5% 437
41212013 23,000 9 5% 844
4/4/2653 9,000 9 5% 328
4/4/2013 10,500 9 5% 382
4/19/2013 121,950 8 5% 4196
4/19/2013 15,300 8 5% 526
4/19/2913 16,500 8 5% 568
4/19/2013 5,500 8 5% 189
4/19/2013 4,500 8 5% 155
15-May-13 5,500 7 5% 170
10-Jun-13 2,480 7 5% 68
25-Jun-13 760 6 5% 19
5-Aug-13 16,598,805 5 5% 330191
Total 18,518,922 419,532




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

University of Cblombo

Vehicles
£ Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
i Capitalized. Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/172013 7,921,300 11.74| 20% 1,584,260
Total 7,921,300 1,584,260
Piant Machinery And Equipment
Depreciatio
Date of - nPeriod | Depreciati| Depreciation
Capitalized Amount’ ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/1/2013 3,583,487 11.74 10%  358,348.73
3,583,487 - 2 358,349




SDemBSS 6c18me@xind

S BBIIANNT Hadap NHLKR Hensoibbarh
AUDITOR GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT

®ed oed '

cens @oo, B8/E/mg o Feed/1/13/610165) 2 0p . } S 12015 goyed 08
My No. Your No. Date

LIGwTIUT 6N,

aleugmu QamPledm uw womId Sgmolw alehepTen BimieusLd

@aTWIDY UNBMVSBPRBHSHILET Bemenuhd eallaugrw QMBI LD oo  SFmdlus
ellghepmen BmeussHlear 2013 HOFwuy 31 G6d (PYDMH LEVIYDEBTAT BlHSFeDHDISHHET -
g 2008 @eir 02 Qb @evds eleusmw QFmPedm uw woHmd Symbdus - elehEnme
pmieus  suflariguist 27 b Uifley womd 1978 @& 16 b Bevds
LV BNVSBIPBMIGNT JFBTIFFLLSS@ 108(1) <o Ufleller dpsmyw seawudbsruieumen

seneoentd SFLBUTET DiflEanss.

@&TIPOL UDBMVEHBINBHIHIL ST  Bemenwihs eleugmw  Qamfleomud  womid  Symdw
allehepmenr BlmeussHest 2013 HOFwuT 31 Ged o _eTemeurmmen  BiF Bleneveniodgnmm
wHnd GHBHUTO  (PYeUMLBHS DIEHBTET BIHFTT GQFweormmed Fammi, 2._femw
(PEUGEN  LOMMMMBIGEN Fadml, STHUUTWIFFO &SaPm OOMID (WhHEHwiorer sewissL(Hd
OaTeiemaEmeTULD el allendssd HHeusoderie QuUTPIlyBSmeTUD 2 6TenL s 2013
HEFOUT 31 @60 (PYUMLDHD WM BlFHBFapmissen 1971 @er 38 b Bovdd
)Y él,é,]&rrgé&t'.t.&,ﬂs&r 13(1) o dfley woHod 1978 e 16 b Bevds
LIOSMEVBHIPBMBIBET BIHBTTFFLLSHe 107(5) o0 2 u Uifley wmumid 2008 et 02 b
@evds OQaTupy UOSMLEHLSHIe aleusmw Gsmbleomu womd Symdw  efehepmen
pmieus  euflemiiguiet 27 o Uifley LHMID UOBMEVSHHINBEIEBET  HHBTTFFLL G601
108(1) feysenLal Gojss eandessliuGyd Heoomms FobTwWs GFrTealssd (GLWIs
sirflwevenolniest  154(1) o 2 miiysmyulledeTen  gOUTHHEDHEHE  REwIEIE 61605
uswillest & semssTule] GMHOBTETENILLLG. UOSMVSHDBEIGN HHBTTFFLL SHE60
108(1) o Udflelesr Ogsmpn  BoeusdHar aGLIBS Sihdmayre  LysfléesiuT
Bou6uwT(hOLoeor [HT&T B(HBILD 61601 5] &(HSHBH]MT B 6N LoMHmILD SIS TENILI S S 6
@elauplbemnauled SmemTiiL®BEesmen.

o 306/72, eged <0d, AR, 8 6D, .- @a. 306172, QursigTar eI, ussTapsme, Bemma.- No. 306/72, Polduwa Road, Battaramulla, Sri Lanka

7F7 +94-11-2887028-34 +94-11-2887223 .. ocaggov@sltnet.lk .7 www.auditorgeneral.gov.lk



i

| Sosmanled ecerboeSainl

DM BHRE BOADE BT Hannibhai
| Auditor General's Depariment

AGDSL |

BlH&Fa DMIBBEHBBTRT (PBTMIDSSHIUSSHGET QUITmILIL

BbBHBFOMISSMEN QeVEINS QUITHISHHIMD SHIGSEL(H BIULEISEDGHE SIS
swrfgs  Blurtworssd  soTOlSH0  womtd  Gurgy — Sedevg  Heumisere
STIILOTE  gHULSTalpwl  GQuTmemienwwren  Unwampmidseflelpbas  alGHulL
IS Fn DMIDH B 6T S swrfitiugmn@ SieuFlwiomen Qg6 (PBTMLOSHHI6ULD
piremuildSleain DibSmaw 2 elensd SLBUUTHST aaUaIDONG (PBTEHLOSHICULD

QurmiuTs 2 _eiTeng.

S bsTWIeursmier Qumrmiliy L v riiLg

o seussTUald  Sigliuentuled  @nBdlsammpmisseier  16g  oulilyrwibd
Gzflaliliug! eeng QUIMIILTGWD. SASHYWT SewisaTule] Buneuaimiseils FTaCsHa.
PULLESEDSES @55ITE (eevelavgsy 1000 - 1810) Gevmemns SHaMGHSHTUIR
BWEISEDHESG  Qemms ok sevbatulelemsst  Brel  GuomOsreasiGLel.
a5sOBM  Ceusti(bHe0HEHL AT [HIesT @eWImId  BLAUSMWLD BlHdamDmibsel
Qurpewienowmest UMY  FaPmSbEeT  SIDDOUWT  RILUSDSTeT  BILITWILDTE
2 _miFlourlenLl QuOHMISQBTETEUHN S SHEIHBTUIE SO B

Gum@sTsiTeniLhousmain @bilulomaseT Geusmi(haleTmet.

EAEENOINEE: 1B OaTemasH6rleneTuLd QeuefilLI(BSHFH60HMEMULD umpilw
HEISHSTWNF FTamsamenl QuDMmECsTaTaugsNaTa QFUPUTLH HenL(PennHerled
HEWISHTUI6Y FHUBS TSI Gomraig SI6060) SHeumiaerflest SITJEUILOT S
B\ an M1 B 616wt QLI ([H 65T 6B LOLIT 63T Umwpaamm S LG Hevt ST 1 emeot
2 _6MLGG SewmibeTwleureniflal SHiomend 15gh OFfley QuiwiulL B (penmaEsit
sEELeTeNg. DIHS pusHemen  HUIGH  CFumsulsd  FHSTUILSHDESL
QUTHSSLOTEN HEWIBHBTUIE| HEDL(LPMMBENET 6UIQEUMIOBEGHLD 6uMBUT6D  BImI6ws g Hl6s
Bl@dampmibsamens SWTAGHe0 ODID Blwrwwrss Foitlssas@ilu 2 eensd
sLBUUT(hSmeN  SewibBTUIMTENT HHHHO OamerdaprCrueiy  Pueussden
2 eiondd sLBUUTHSeNe  almeisdneisar g  onllyrud  Cxflels @b
CrraasInars b,  (WWaETmSIHIUSHOTed  LwaTUBGSHL  Sabdl (B
Garetensseiel QUTHSHBHWTNT SHarenoulenaTujd (PBHTMLOGHIUSHSTED BGLomGieETeusTL
smisS B wHIiGseiar Burws seaemwulmerun wHiuTWe CFUISN DISSHIL 6
Bl a0 HmId s eiflest RL(HOLTSS FLOMULGSH60l6en601 LoAILITU16) QFUIHD
eTsTUeUMMleneU|d SeWIBBTUI6R] 2 _6TeTLSEW6Tongl. 1971 @61 38 b Bevds B
siFETrFslLSHE 13 o dfleler (3) oo woHod (4) S 2 uldfleysel



1.4

2.1

2.2

2.2.1

SnTmEe ecrdoedoinl

Auditor General’s Department

AGDSY

semsaTeals BBTa0scmevemuud uglemuub  BiteuliugsnsTen  Somieniy

SRS HSMN HWHHTUIGUTENT HMELMID HFUHS@G 6uLPmIGHesImeot.
aeg samssTule) SUOdrTwsHnsTen Sl STV  CUPEGHBMES
GurgdlwisreyLd QUITHSSLOTE HILOM 60T BHEMBBTUIEF ST MIHEN6T [BIT60T

QupMSOETETICL T 61631 HT6H BHLOLSIGMET.

wenerluglujeien sevsbsruley SLINTFTWSSHDETE DiglILenL

@b snsmawiear 2.2 b ubHuled eluflssiul L el wnkiseaiesi: SigliuenL uled
etenig SIdFTwD (WemetuluenenSToSsILGS SIS v

B\ Fa DMI S 6T

wemetiulujeien SIAyTuid

@by oPsmasulsr 2.2 b upHuled eluflEsiu’ L el wmbisefenmed gHUFHL
FTHEeHFmend  Haly, OCsTWIDY UOSMVSINIHIHILST  Bemewihd  aleugmw
Ozmpleomud  womd Sgmilw  elghepmenr  BmeusshHer 2013 HOFwuT 31 Ged
2 oitemeurmmest MlFH Hlenevenoulemand DiSHBHUID  (WIgeUmLHS S EUETIQmES T60
SIBeg  BPert  QFueTHmelmeTWd  STHEI  UTWIFFMOWD BRI
Gurrg,jg',@mmé HeWIBSL(H BIWLLOEISEThE (&) @ euuTEIS IS I HMIS S 61T

2 emenowirsed Blurwwrseb UydHuedadlaipen aaiug ereng SINFTuwiom @b,

BlHdgeDMIBBET ST & ([HDHS1M] H6IT

SEHS_(Hd (GOUT(HEB6IT

desteupd sugnefliysser Gumsmeismiubaleimest.

(o) Ozflyl ufiGsrgemenseien Gurg sewiLPWILL LSS NysTyn 2014 b
apsmignGflw  Gseveled, 2013 b Spewigest  QFevalanons &b
QeuiwiulL  sMremshsred enmuleumewnget OGFevelerd wHMID I BRI

QFsvaiedid erssiuen chUT 72,167 D60 FaBBHOTHE BTGB Y HHSHII.

BB B MBS B Dtb R



Ry { B .
| SOFEamBed ecciineSsinl
Do hBEHIRE BOAE UHUE Seatbpai

i Auditor General’s Depariment
AGDSL |

(o) DPloeussdnGs CFThaons STewiliLbld 3848 FHy g Senelsomen 04
sLigLEIS6T WHNIG Cruwiul h BHHsampnisseiled 2 eTen &SI HES

aIl606M6V.

2.2.2 FLLEI6T, el@®ell, LJOTEmBE6T DHMID (PSTEDIDSSHINS SHILDTEIBISEHL 6T

B 1S H1OHTEmLD

&6 STLLLUUL (BTN 6w BLO6I eDIDBET  Bi6VSHT 6011 B ILIL L 60T

FLLEIG6T, eld@erm, LFLomemimissi B\ 6vu15 BLO6BT60LD
eTILIUMMIL 69160 GISTLTL RIS

(o) 2004 west 29 b HaHw 25 HempGsfiulesr (el  MSHTTD  E606VTLD6D
SLD O F: SITF Bl& eHUIT 33,594,075 QzTens ERC)
E Tl $20F: QeuiwiUl YHBSS-

(o) 2002 meubuj 28 o FHasHw GHewiedl 2 _LIUTSBIGET HMID CLoe@uUT[HLS6
06129/2002/02 T @e0dH GzmLjurs  uFBaulLmeiy  BuemTiuL MBS
HemmGafl FHlsma sllsdemev.

3.1 pid) alleneneymei

gojulssiu’ L BHsampnisseilesr Aysmrw, 2013 HogFwufj 31 @O  Wyedm
SLEIYNBTRT  BmeussHent Bl elememeyment  epur 6,301,901  lemswirs
BBHESHILS, FCITH @S5S (PHIMMIW  JWIge Wend  aHuT 2,194,894 o1&
BHHSH. (WAMSIW  DLYNEG @UUITS Wenmwieumemiges Lewa emum 4,107,007
60 SPBFEHBHM0HBTS DPFTRIS LINWD qpuT 3,479,000 60 SiHBHHHEMLO
aGFLIonE FHTEHLMNSHHHHDHHI.



SOFTES eeecrZoeSnin
DB RUROMNT B NS F0h b
Auditor General’s Department

I8

AGDSL. |

4. Qawmpur’ (kG Wermuie|

4.1 QFuwleurhmed

Hetteumd oisugreiliydsst GmsmereniuGalesiment.

(o 2013 HOswuy 31 eueny uediUGQuUITmIy SiglivenLuled Gayésiu’L 35
oamPlwfHsell  STMILLLLFHIL 6, Sfeufdemed 11 Guj 05 ewi(HBEHHS
CupulL GComeausaTgms Uisd CeuFmpbasia, GCFmeuds STevld
QAIBLT QUBLLD Bg&SLILL 1RHbSS. o

(=) @epw BEHMs eumedpll U 2 HUSHHG GChrygwrs umsefliys QFuwiub
@empw BhHMmS  puleysaLld wPMID usmw  eihselaT  SIMATH
2 HH0WrsSHHTH6N, QFumuTL( wOHHW GCLOUTTME  HLEUIYEHMHHE6N
GumHOsTeTEnd 2 HHCWTEHHTH6NT  IHCWTHEETE  SimISHFSsIU L
useweniQuITesTenm ugmflSaF OF606usNG BL6UQHMS
61(h &S LILLIQ (hSHH6606M6V.

5. SeSHSMIGOUITDIILLD HE06OMEHENSW|D

5.1 h.LIQQ)W_F_F')g; SLIb

2003  wer 02 o FaHw 12 o Gevdds Qungkl WPpwoFder SHDHMMISenSUTe
AyesmyLd mBlmieuds HHeot Qewpur’(b LI 5 6N B (EThE BITH OB BLLTOULDTH
LWSTU(GSSIuSDSW  udlETLBausHGLD  (pipujomer  suensulsd  Lemmuleuremign@
(LpeBTEnT T Fa L 1QeMEIHD HLGHmS swrfléa) (PBTMLDSH |6 Fenuulles
SESHTIHMmBL  QupmSOsTeTeniu.  Geuewngws  Burdewd, iFest  FsMyLD
BLOUGSHMS 61(HBBLILLIY(HEHHT606M6V.



University of Colombo, Institute for Agro-
Technology and Rural Sciences
(UCIARS)

ANNUAL REPORT
2013



(@

Our Vision
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Our Mission
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Director’s Review:

University of Colombo, Institute for Agro-technology and Rural Sciences which was
inaugurated in late 90’s has come a long way since its inception and has established itself as
an Institute providing much needed contemporary technology and scientific knowledge to
rural agricultural community in Sri Lanka.

Commencing its activities by providing tissue cultured banana plants, which is economically
viable and environmental friendly, the Institute has started imparting modern technological as
well as theoretical aspects of Agriculture and Regional Sciences by introducing three (03)
study programmes at Certificate, Diploma and Higher Diploma levels. These study
programmes have become very popular among rural farmers, who are interested and
enthusiastic in gaining new knowledge. On successful completion, these farmer students are
awarded with a certificate according to the level of achievement, and this has become an
additional incentive to them, who have been deprived of such opportunities due to a number
of reasons. Those students who successfully complete the Higher Diploma will be able to
read for their Bachelors Degree thereafter.

The management of the Institute ably assisted by the present Chairperson of the UGC, Prof.
Kshanika Hirimburegama and the Vice Chancellor, University of Colombo, Dr. W.K.
Hirimburegama has now embarked on further strengthening the Institute by introducing three
degree programmes encompassing the study areas of Environment Sciences, Agricultural
Technology and Regional Sciences. The Institute has been able to expand the activities
connected to Tissue Cultured Banana Plants production by increasing the existing laboratory
facilities. The Institute has been able to make itself a self sustainable unit largely due to the
income generated through the sales of Tissue Cultured Banana Plants.

One of the unique aspects intumesced is the Institute is its dedicated staff, all of whom are
employed on assignment basis. The potential and the capability of the Institute will be
thoroughly tested in the coming years as the external environment related to many aspects,
both commercial and academic may become very competitive. On the other hand, the newly
established Hambantota Harbor and Mattala Airport have opened many areas for new
entrepreneurial projects where the UCIARS can become the guiding light in making those
ventures extremely viable.

Our ultimate aim is to develop the UCIARS as a modern Regional University providing
globally compatible human resources and technological inputs assisting the Sri Lankan
economy at large in the quest of making Sri Lanka the “Knowledge Hub” of Asia.

M.D.Piyathilake
Director/UCIARS



Special Events in 2013

1. Start 5" intake of Agro-technology diploma leading to Degree with 115 agric
entrepreneurs.

2. Able to create new agric entrepreneurs in commercial Mango cultivation.

3. Able to create new agric entrepreneurs in Mushroom production/ Mushroom society with
40 farmers.

4. Increase the Tissue Culture Banana plant production from 15,000 to 20,000 per month
by applying new technologies in laboratories and plant nurseries.

5. Introduce vermin composting and organic cultivation.

6. Dr. R. A. Mashelkar (National Research professor and President, Global Research
Alliance National Chemical Laboratory, India) ranked the Institute in category 01 (Very
high potential for success based on fulfillment of many factors in his categorization
methodology) at the evaluation carried out by the HETC project.
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1. OVERVIEW

1.1 Introduction

The Institute was established as the Magampura Agro-Technology and Community Services
Center in Weligatta, Hambantota affiliated to the University of Colombo in 2000 by the
UGC. The Centre’s history dates back to 1998 through which the University researchers were
able to build over the years close collaborative links with the community in order to transfer
technology/knowledge and know-how directly to the end-users and improve efficiency in
agriculture and agro-industry in the region. The founder of this institute was the former Vice-
Chancellor of the University of Colombo and the present Chairperson of the University
Grants Commission, Professor Kshanika Hirimburegama.

The University of Colombo Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences (UCIARS)
was established as a Higher Educational Institute affiliated to the University of Colombo,
under Section 24A of the Universities Act no 16 of 1978 and the University of Colombo
Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences Ordinance No. 02 of 2008. The Order
came into operation with effect from 23rd August 2008.

UCIARS conducts Certificate, Diploma, Higher Diploma courses which are leading to a
Bachelor of Agro-Technology Degree which is offered by the University of Colombo.

All courses conducted by the UCIARS are blended with distance mode of teaching to provide
opportunities of higher education to farming community across barriers of age, space, time
and academic background. The Institute has a mandate to “provide, promote and develop
among persons presently engaged in Agriculture and Agro-Technology, higher education in
the discipline of Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences”. It will cater to the changing
individual and social needs by taking education through a blended learning mode to the
doorsteps of the farming community who never dreamt of entering the portals of higher
education. They have aspirations and potential to pursue higher education but could not
utilize the opportunities due to their personal, family or economic backgrounds. With the
flexibility in the entry requirements and choice of courses, the Institute demonstrates that it is
possible to impart quality higher education using modern Information Communication
Technologies to learners of the farming communities of poor rural sectors to pursue
education at a pace and place convenient to them and realize their academic, professional and
social aspirations.

In addition to the Academic Programme, the Institute produces tissue cultured banana to the
local farming community with very reasonable rates and has generated income for the
Institute as well. At the moment 03 tissue culture laboratories are in operation and 03 main
net houses have been built at the nursery. Each month all three laboratories produce at about
15,000 tissue cultured banana plants for its nurseries. The Institute has conducted several
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workshops, seminars to transfer the tissue cultured banana technology to the rural farmers
scattered island wide. Also the Institute has participated at various national level exhibitions
using its resources to make aware the people about the new technology affixed to rural
sciences.

1.2 The Board of Management

The Board of Management of the Institute is constituted in terms of Section 05 of the
University of Colombo, Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences, Ordinance No. 02
of 2008. According to Section 10 of the above Ordinance, The Board of Management shall
be the academic and executive body of the Institute and shall consist of:

Five ex-officio members, namely:-

(a) the Director, who shall be the Chairperson;

(b) the Deputy Director;

(c) the Secretary to the Ministry of the Minister in charge of the subject of Higher
Education or the Secretary to such other Ministry to which the subject of Higher
Education may be assigned or his nominee;

(d) the Secretary to the Ministry of the Minister in charge of the subject of Agriculture or
his nominee; and

(e) the Dean of the Faculty of Science of the University; and

Six other members, namely:-

(a) two members appointed by the Commission to represent the Agro-Technology and
Agri-business industries;

(b) two members appointed by the Council from among its members;

(c) the District Secretary of the Hambantota District or his nominee; and

(d) one member appointed by the Academic Syndicate from among its members.

1.3 Meetings of the Board of Management
The Board of Management of the institute met regularly during the year to review the

academic and administrations matters. The Board of management has met Six times during
the year 2013.
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The composition of the Board of Management in 2013 is as follows:

Ex-officio members (as specified in the Ordinance)

Director — Chairman

Mr. M.D.Piyathilake
(w.e.f.20.05.2013)

Nominee of the Secretary to the Ministry of Higher
Education

Mrs. A.S.P. Weerasuriya

Nominee of the Secretary to the Ministry of Agriculture

Dr.D.M.N.Dissanayake
(w.e.f.31.08.2013)

Dean of the Faculty of Science

Prof. T.R. Ariyaratne

Other members (as specified in the Ordinance)

UGC Nominees

Prof. S.G.J.N. Senanayake

Prof. Mahinda Wijeratne

Council Nominees

Mr. C. Maliyadde

Prof. K.S. Chandrasiri
(w.e.f. 28.09.2012)

District Secretary/Hambantota

Mr. R.C. De Soysa
(w.e.f. 27.07.2012)

On Invitation/In Attendance

Course Coordinator

Mrs.N.P.Vidanapathirana

Assistant Bursar

Mrs. A.A.S.C. Ubeysinghe
(w.e.f. 11.05.2012)

Rural Entrepreneurship Development (RED) Coordinator

Mr. H.R.S.D.W. Alwis

In charge Plant Nursery/Laboratory

Ms. S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani

Secretary

Assistant Registrar

Mr. W.M.K. Upuldeniya
(27.07.2012)
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2. OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The institute was mainly involved with Academic Programmes, Tissue Cultured Banana
Production Programme and Rural Entrepreneur Development (RED) Programme. In addition
to that, several workshops and awareness programmes were conducted to make aware rural
farmers on new technology of farming and value added products of banana cultivation as
outreach activities of the Institute by identifying their social needs.

In the year 2013 the Institute continued its academic activities using the academic section and
produced tissue cultured banana using laboratories and the nurseries. The RED Programme
provided financial assistance to the selected, talented farmer students to start new
agribusinesses or upgrade their existing agribusinesses to uplift their livelihood.

The Institute worked towards its goals with the assistance of 54 Staff members comprising
17% academic/support, 6% administrative, 6% administrative/support and 71% as non-
academic staff (figure-01). Among those staff, Assistant Registrar and Assistant Bursar were
appointed by the University Grants Commission in the middle of the year 2012 as permanent
cadre and other staff members were appointed to the Institute on assignment and annual
renewal basis. In the year the 2012, to appoint a permanent Director to the Institute,
newspaper advertisements were placed in the national newspapers by calling applications. As
a result, Permanent Director was appointed with effect from 20™ May 2013 by University of
Colombo. The process of acquisition of land for the Institute was carried on in the year 2013
too.

Staff Status of the UCIARS -2013

B Academic/ support B Administrative

Administrative/support m Non-Academic

-

Figure-01

Administrative Staff of the Institute as at 31.12.2013 illustrated in Table - 01.
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S/n | Name Designation
1 | Mr. M.D.Piyathilake Director (w.e.f.20.05.2013)
2 | Mr. W.M.K. Upuldeniya | Assistant Registrar (w.e.f. 14.05.2012)
3 | Mrs. A.A.S.C. | Assistant Bursar (w.e.f. 02.04.2012)
Ubeysinghe
Table - 01

Administrative/support Staff of the Institute as at 31.12.2013 illustrated in Table - 02.

S/n | Name Designation
1 | Ms.W.K.K.Rajika Management Assistant (w.e.f.07.02.2013)
Nilangani
2 | Ms.D.W.Chathurani Management Assistant((w.e.f.01.03.2013)
3 | Mr.R.V.P.N.Kumara Management Assistant (w.e.f.03.10.2013)
Table — 02

Non-Academic staff (General Administration) as at 31.12.2013 illustrated in Table - 03.

S/n | Name Designation
1 | Mr. Sampath Security Officer
2 | Mr. Chaminda Security Officer
3 | Mr. K.P. Gunadasa | Security Officer (Part-time/Night Shifts)
Table — 03

2.1 Academic Performance

The UCIARS introduced its academic programmes in the year 2008 and has a mandate to
provide, promote and develop among persons presently engaged in Agriculture and Agro-
technology, higher education in the disciplines of Agro-technology and Rural sciences. It will
cater to the changing individual and social needs by taking education through a blended
learning mode to the doorsteps of the farming community who never dreamt of entering the
portals of higher education. However, they have aspirations and potential to pursue higher
education but could not utilize the opportunities for personal, family or economic reasons.
With the flexibility in the entry requirements and choice of courses the institute demonstrates
that it is possible to impart quality higher education using modern information
communication technologies to learners of the farming communities of poor rural sectors to
pursue education at a pace and place convenient to them and realize their academic,
professional and social aspirations.

This is a novel educational venture for Agriculture entrepreneurs and this is the first
opportunity for rural farming community to upgrade their knowledge using local language in
Sri Lanka. Farming community of Sri Lanka is mostly concentrated in rural areas and their
contribution to the agriculture is very high. But the rural farming community has low
facilities to pursue their education, personal and professional development. Hence, for the
first time, Institute of Agro technology and Rural Sciences which was affiliated to the
University of Colombo (UCIARS) at Weligatta offered a Certificate/Diploma programme for
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farmers who were presently engaged in agriculture. The important feature of this programme
is that it operates through online and distance e-learning method which is a novel experience
in Sri Lanka.

The course consists of three parts as Diploma, Higher Diploma and Degree programs.

Diploma in Agro-technology (2 years and 03 months) consists of 09 Certificates courses;
Higher Diploma in Agro-technology (1 year) consists of 04 certificate courses and another
one year to complete Degree. Duration for each certificate course is three months. Those who
passed 09 certificate courses of study are made eligible to receive the Diploma in Agro-
technology. Students who complete Diploma in Agro-technology with at least a “C” Pass for
all nine (9) courses and with a minimum of 2.75 GPA can pursue the Higher Diploma in
Agro-technology followed by Bachelor of Agro-technology by adding 7 certificate courses
and a six month research project.

Certificate Courses in Diploma in Agro-technology
1. Crop Husbandry

Horticulture

Crop Protection

Irrigation Technology

Food Science

Post Harvest Technology

Floriculture

Agro-business Management

Fundamentals of Animal Husbandry

© Nk W

Certificate Courses in Higher Diploma in Agro-technology
1. Organic Farming
2. Farm Machinery
3. Dairy and Animal Science
4. Aquaculture and Fisheries

B.Ag-tech Degree Programme
1. Biostatistics
2. Genetic and Plant Breeding
3. Farm Practice Course
4. Research Project

All the components of this programme such as, practical, assignments, theoretical
contribution as well as the learner support services have highly contributed towards the
personal and professional development of rural farming community to develop as agricultural
entrepreneurs.
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Further this online Diploma/Higher Diploma and Degree programmes are providing
motivational opportunity to the young generation to remain in agriculture having gained
social recognition in the society.

Thirty five (35) student farmers in the first batch successfully completed their Diploma in
Agro-technology and 28 selected student farmers are now following the Bachelor of Agro-
technology Degree. Second and third batch are following the Higher Diploma in Agro-
technology leading to Degree and others are following the Diploma.

Also the Institute was able to admit the 5" Batch of Students to the Diploma Programme by
registering 115 students in the year 2013. Now they are pursuing their study programmes
successfully.

Registered Students as at
Programme Students 31.12.2013
- Male | Female Male Female
5" Batch — Diploma in Agro- 100 15 70 12
Technology
Table — 04

After introducing the Diploma in Agro-Technology in the year 2008, the Institute was able to
increase gradually its annual intake of students. 1% batch of Students are now doing their
studies in the Higher Diploma in Agro-Technology which is leading to a Degree and offered
by the University of Colombo.

Total Number of Students engaged with the Institute from the year 2008 to 2013 is given
below (Table — 04, Figure — 02)

Batch Female Male Total
1% Batch 06 22 28
2" Batch 07 38 45
3" Batch 05 50 55
4" Batch 11 50 61
5" Batch 12 70 82

Table - 05
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Figure — 02
Admission Requirement to the Academic Programme

Admission will be done by calling applications from interested parties through newspaper
advertisements published in the national newspapers in Sri Lanka.

Enrolment is open to any person engaged in the field of Agriculture/Agro-business at least for
a period of 05 years and who have successfully passed the GCE A-Level Examination;

Or

Any person engaged in the field of Agriculture/Agro-business at least for a period of 07 years
and who has successfully passed the GCE O-Level Examination.

Eligible applicants will be summoned for an aptitude test for selection. According to the
results of the aptitude test, registration is done after having an interview.

Staff of the Academic Programme as at the 31.12.2013 is given below.

Academic/Support

S/n | Name Designation
1 | Ms. N.P. Vidanapathirana | Course Coordinator
2 | Ms. S.A.P. Nelka Course Coordinator
2 | Ms. G.L.M.S. Perera Assistant Course Coordinator
3 | Ms. T.U.P. Wijewickrama | Assistant Course Coordinator
4 | Ms. S.L. Navarathna Assistant Course Coordinator
5 | Ms. T.G.H.C. Gunathilake | Assistant Course Coordinator
6 | Mr. H.R. Chamara Assistant Course Coordinator
7 | Mr. HK.R.S. Kumara Assistant Course Coordinator
Table - 06
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Non-Academic

S/n | Name Designation
1 | Mr. P.B. Darshana Computer Application
Assistant
Table - 07

2.2 RED Programme Performance

University of Colombo Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences (UCIARS)
commenced a novel programme as ‘“Rural Entrepreneurship Development (RED)
Programme” in 2011, to provide initial financial assistance to its’ farmer students to start new
agribusinesses or upgrade their existing agribusinesses with the intention of further
strengthening their economy and livelihood. The RED programme was designed and
implemented with the technical advices of Prof. Kim, Jae-Ho, an Emeritus Professor in
Agronomy and the founder of venture agriculture concept in Korea. Prof. Kim is the world’s
Friend Advisor to UCIARS dispatched by KOICA (Korean International Cooperation
Agency).

As an initiation to the RED Programme, the Institute offered financial assistance to selected
talented farmer students to commence their new agribusinesses or upgrade their existing
agribusinesses. After receiving the project proposals from interested students, the Institute
selected 14 farmer students to grant the financial assistance considering the information
gathered through field visits, observations and individual project proposals. In January 2012,
the Institute offered the financial assistance to selected recipients amounting to Rs.100,000.00
with very flexible conditions under the agreements signed in between each student and the
Institute. Out of the 14 students, only 12 students collected the cheques for their financial
assistance.

The progress of the RED programme was significant at the end of December 2013 in terms of
its expected results. The achievements in additional value creation by end of December 2013
were in approximately 3 million and the 12 new job opportunities have been generated by 12
entrepreneurs during this period. Under the RED program it was conducted several
workshops under mushroom cultivation, Dairy industry and mango cultivation. Also it has
organized technology transfer workshop at Katupotha, Kurunegala
for finding financial assistance for giving loans for farmers.

Farmers Trust Fund has agreed to give two million rupees into 1% interest to the institute and
initial arrangements have been done for distributing these funds among students.

Staff of in the RED Programme as at the 31.12.2013 is given below.

S/n | Name Designation
1 Mr. H.R.S.D.W. Alwis Coordinator/RED Programme
Table - 08
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2.3

Plant Nursery/Laboratories Performance

Although the Institute for Agro-technology and Rural Sciences was established in 2008
according to the Ordinance, the Tissue Culture Unit was started in 1998 as a project of a
University of Colombo by aiming poor and rural farming community to encourage
developing their socioeconomic status. In 2001 department of Plant Sciences, Faculty of
Science introduced Tissue Cultured banana and yam plantlets at the Institute as
demonstration. Since 2003 the Institute was able to carry out its own production under the
guidance and supervision of the University of Colombo. Continuous training programs and
awareness workshops were conducted by the University to train the newly appointed
laboratory staffs.

Staff of the Plant Nursery and Laboratory as at 31.12.2013 is given below.

S/n | Name Designation
1 | Miss. S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani Research Assistant (In Charge/Laboratories)
2 | Mr. H. Rohanadheera Research Assistant (In Charge/Plant Nursery)
3 | Mr. TAK.Y. Indunil Filed In Charge
4 | Mr. HK.S. Ishara Field Assistant
5 | Mr. P.W.A. Chaminda Jayalath Technical Assistant
6 | Mr. B.G. Susira Kumara Technical Assistant
7 | Miss. A.N. Abeygunawardhana Tissue Culture Assistant
8 | Mrs. H.K. Samanthi Nilini Kumari | Tissue Culture Assistant
9 | Mrs. M.G.C. Sudarshani Tissue Culture Assistant
10 | Mrs. A. Priyanga Sudarshi Tissue Culture Assistant
12 | Miss. U. Anusha Ruwani Tissue Culture Assistant
13 | Mrs. W.H. Disna Sandamali Tissue Culture Assistant
14 | Miss. I.G. Dilini Nirosha Kumari Tissue Culture Assistant
16 | Miss. O.P. Niluka Subashini Tissue Culture Assistant
17 | Miss. D. Ishadi Nimalga Tissue Culture Assistant
18 | Miss. K.P. Udeni Nisansala Tissue Culture Assistant
19 | Mrs. P. S. Sarasika Abeywickrama | Tissue Culture Assistant
20 | Mrs. W.H. Nelum Surangi Wasana | Tissue Culture Assistant
21 | Miss. K.G.D. Milshani Tissue Culture Assistant
22 | Miss. W.H. Vichithra Kalpanie Tissue Culture Assistant
23 | Miss. Ayesha Lakmali Senarathna | Tissue Culture Assistant
24 | Miss. Isanka Chamedani Dodampe | Tissue Culture Assistant
25 | Ms.H.W.G.N.Udayangani Tissue Culture Assistant
26 | Ms.R.M.Ruwanthi Tissue Culture Assistant
27 | Ms.J.K.Wathsala Tissue Culture Assistant
28 | Ms.J.K.N.Maduwanthi Tissue Culture Assistant
29 | Ms.N.s.Perera Tissue Culture Assistant
30 | Ms.H.R.Akeesha Madumali Tissue Culture Assistant

Table — 09

52



Performance in year 2013

It was a very successful year for the tissue culture plant production section of the institute due
to high demand for the plants. The institute was able to introduce tissue cultured banana for
the farmers in Eastern province with difficulties of changing the way of thinking of farmers.
Finally institute was successful in taking technology to the farmers who were suffered from
the terrorism for past three decades.

Comparison of Laboratory plant production and Plant Sales in last Five Years
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Figure - 03

Three Tissue Culture laboratories are located inside the Institute. Every month these
laboratories produce more than 15,000 Tissue Cultured banana plants in three varieties
(Embul, Kolikuttu, Dwarf Cavendish, Ash plantain) using net-houses after completing well
monitored acclimatization process. Demand for the Tissue Cultured banana highly depend
on the climatic conditions but highest demand is recorded in the rainy season (September to
April) and low demand in the dry season (May to August).
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Plant sale in variety basis

Plant Sale - 2013
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Figure -04

Demand for the tissue cultured banana is higher than conventional plant productions and
farmer’s major requirement was Embul banana (Sour Banana) due to higher long term
profitability and less disease susceptibility.

Plant production from three Laborotories

Plant Production -2013
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2

m3

Figure- 05

Figure - 05 illustrated the plant production by three laboratories in year 2013. Laboratory 01
showed declined production in 2013 due to contaminations and renovations of the building
during end of year 2012. The institute changes its pattern of production as necessary,
according to the fluctuations observed from the demand in rainy and dry seasons.

The institute has facilitated rural entrepreneurs living in remote areas under “Divi Neguma”
program by providing them non-acclimatized Tissue Cultured banana plants. This
programme is supervised solely by the Institute.
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The Institute provides banana plants to the local farmers with low cost and farmers are
engaged with the institution representing remote areas in Sri Lanka. The Institute conducted
workshops in Dambana, Batticaloa, Horoupathana, Katupotha and Ampara areas to make
farmers aware of this technology and encourage them to cultivate banana in their areas. Our
field staff regularly monitors their cultivations and provides necessary instructions and
guidance they need. These farmers were categorized according to their purchases.

Farmers Engaged with the Institute

m Perchased 200 > plants

o Perchased 200 < plants

Figure - 06

Field officers attached to the institute have arranged field visits to Ampara, Batticaloa and
Katupotha to observe the possibilities to expand Tissue Culture banana farming community
in above districts. In 2013 a farmer group from Batticaloa visited the institute and TC banana
fields in Mamadala area. Then the institute successfully started tissue culture banana
cultivations in those areas with interested farmers.

Tissue cultured banana fields at Batticaloa

Picture-01 Picture-02
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Under HETC Project, Institute was granted Rs. 10 million and the money is utilizing
efficiently and effectively for the development of three programmes at the institute. Also the
money was utilized to purchase some equipment which are very important for the institute
and also to transfer technology to Northern and Eastern provinces of the country. Dr. R. A.
Mashelkar (National Research professor and President, Global Research Alliance National
Chemical Laboratory, India) ranked the institute in category 01 (Very high potential for
success based on fulfillment of many factors in his categorization methodology) at the
evaluation carried out by the HETC project.
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3. RESEARCH AND INNOVATIONS

Research done by IARS in 2013

Research Area  : Agro Technology

Research Topic : Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Coir Pallet growing disks against

conventional soil potting medium in Tissue Cultured Sour Banana
Acclimatization Process.

Researchers : Rohanadheera H., Srimal Ishara H.K.

Brief Introduction : Since 1999, Tissue Cultured Plant Production Unit utilized soil mixed
potting medium in banana acclimatization process to maintain healthy
and vigorous mother plantlets. Several weaknesses of the method were
identified and the research conducted to overcome those demerits to
upgrade the quality and quantity of the production.

Research Findings : It is explored that significant plus points of coir pellet growing disks in
considered plant factors and physical factors.
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. TRAINING, WORKSHOPS AND STAFF DEVELOPMENT

. School children visited the institute to get practical experience and knowledge in
tissue culture technology in 2013 and workshops were conducted for undergraduate
students from several universities.

. Workshops for technology transferring for Dairy, Mushroom and Mango were
conducted by the Institute.

. Able to create new agric entrepreneurs in Mushroom production/ Mushroom society
with 40 farmers
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5. RENOVATIONS AND CONSTRUCTIONS PROJECTS

1. Construction of third floor Auditorium was successfully completed in the year 2013.

2. Renovation of one old building of the Institute in the middle of year 2013.
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6. FINANCE

6.1 Details of Recurrent Expenditure

Subject 2012 (Rs) 2013 (Rs)
Personal emoluments 8,257,244.00 11,052,601.00
Travelling 333,000.00 116,241.00
Supplies 249,646.00 1,273,995.00
Maintenance 431,415.00 1,502,400.00
Contractual Services 1,646,008.00 1,381,019.00
Other 2,969,971.00 3,580,253.00
Total 13,887,284.00 18,906,509.00
Table 10
6.2 Details of Capital Expenditure
Subject 2012 (Rs) 2013 (Rs)
Acquisition and Improvements of
Buildings & Structures 1,122,318.00 17,374,704.00
Vehicles 7,725,000.00 -
Lab and Teaching 262,400.00 148,702.00
Computers 229,400.00 369,500.00
Plant Machinery & Equipment 92,799.00 -
Fixtures & Fittings 121,919.00 -
Furniture & Office Equipment 102,579.00 740,257.00
Total 9,656,415.00 18,633,163.00
Table 11
6.3 Details of Project Expenditure (Local/Foreign Funded)
Name TCE Rs. Exp in 2012 Expin 2013 | Cumulative % of
Rs. Rs. Exp as at Physical
31.12.2013 Progress
HETC | 10,000,000.00 - 790,375.52 790,375.52 -
Total | 10,000,000.00 - 790,375.52 790,375.52 -
Table 12

*HETC Project coordination works operate in IARS since 2013 for 3 years (2013-2015)
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6.4 Details of Financial Progress (Generated Income)

Source of Revenue

Provision in 2012

Collecting in 2013

(Deficit)/Surplus

Rs. Rs. Rs.
Certificate Courses- 4,220,000.00 2,230,140.00 (1,989,860.00)
IARS
Sales in Tissue Culture 7,000,000.00 8,249,760.00 1,249,860.00
Banana Plants
Other Income 1,941,000.00 16,355.00 (1,924,645.00)
Total 13,161,000.00 10,496,255.00 (2,664,745.00)
Table 13
6.5 Financial Performance Analysis-2013
Subject Formula Exp.per
Student(Rs)

Recurrent Expenditure per Student (RE) RE/No of Student strength 69,765.72
Capital Expenditure per Student (CE) CE/No of Student strength 68,757.06
Total 138,522.78

Table 14

6.6 Details of Infrastructure Facilities Received in 2013

Infrastructure Details

Expenditure (Rs)

Physical Progress (%)

Building and Structures Extension

540,255.00

100%

Table 15
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Introduction

The establishment of the Institute for Agro-technology and Rural Sciences heralded an era of
affirmative action on the part of the Government of Sri Lanka to “uplift agro industry in' Sri
Lanka as a prestigious occupation through arming the rural community with modern knowledge
on agro-technology with information technology” ! :

The University of Colombo Institute of Agro-Technology and Rural Sciences (U CIARS) (here-
in-referred to as the Institute) was established as an Institute with blended distance mode of
teaching to provide opportunities of higher education to agricultural/farming community across
barriers of age, space, time and academic background, under Section 24 A and Section 18 of the
Universities Act no 16 of 1978 and the University of Colombo Institute of Agro technology and

Rural Sciences Ordinance No. 02 of 20082, The Order under Section 24 A came into operation
with effect from 23™ August 2008.

The Institute incorporated within its system the Magampura Agro-Technology and Community
Services Center in Weligatta, Hambantota affiliated to the University of Colombo in 2000 by the
UGC>. The Institute is located 250 km away from Colombo very close to the Colombo-
Kataragama main road. The Centre’s history dates back to 1998> through which the university
and researchers were able to build over the years close collaborative links with the community in
order to transfer technology / knowledge and know-how directly to the end-users and thereby
improve efficiency in agriculture and agro-industry in the region.

The Institute has a mandate to “providing, promoting and developing among persons presently
engaged in Agriculture and Agro-Technology, higher education in the discipline of Agro-
Technology and Rural Sciences™. It will cater to the changing individual and social needs by
taking higher education through a blended learning mode to the doorsteps of the rural
agricultural community who never dreamt of entering the portals of higher education. However
they have aspiration and potential to pursue higher education but could not utilize the
opportunities for personal, family or economic reasons. With the flexibility in the entry
requirements and choice of courses the Institute demonstrates that it is possible to impart quality
higher education using modern information communication technologies to learers of the
agricultural communities of poor rural sectors to pursue education at a pace and place convenient
to them and realize their academic, professional and social aspirations.

The will and commitment of the Institute to engage with society is evidenced by clear statements
in institutional objectives, strategic planning and, teaching and learning processes.

Organization and management

As the education system moves from elite to mass systems and from emphasis on teaching to a
focus on learning, students become more important actors — as primary clients, consumers, and
learners. This shift will require the establishment of appropriate organizational and management
mechanisms to handle those new roles and the new challenges that they represent. The
Organogram illustrates the organizational structure of the Institute.



Administrative Organization

The Institute is headed by the Director who is the Principal Executive Officer and the principal
academic officer and accounting officer of the Institute. The Director is also an ex-officio
member of the Board of Management, the Academic Syndicate and all Boards of Study of the
Institute, and presides at all meetings of the Board. The Director is also a member of the Senate
and brief the Senate on the academic performance of the Institute. The Board of Management is
the academic and executive body of the Institute. The Institution has the financial autonomy
from the University and the Board of Management is responsible for finances. Under the
Director is the Deputy Director. Director and Deputy Director are officers of the Institute.

It is the duty of the Director on behalf of the Board of Management to ensure that provisions of
the Act, the ordinance or any other instrument, are duly observed. It is also the duty of the

Director to give effect to the decisions of the Board and responsible for the maintenance of
discipline within the institute.

Academic Organization

The Academic Syndicate chaired by the Director has the control and general direction over
instruction, training, research and examinations of the Institute.

There are three Boards of Study chaired by the Director in respect of Research Higher Degrees;
Internal Academic Programs; External and Extension Programs. The Boards of Study have

control and general direction over instruction, training, research and examinations of th
Institute. :

There are three Departments of Study in respect of the disciplines of (i) Agro-Technology; (ii)

Food Technology; and (iii) Entrepreneurship, Agro-business and Rural Sciences. Each
Department of study is led by a Head.

The three Centers, Agribusiness and industry cell; the Science Park; Extension programs, are led
by a Coordinator.

Faculty and support staff of the Institute and from collaborating partner institutions and

universities assists the development of learning material, delivering and support of academic
courses / program.,



INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31ST 2013

(Figures adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

Assistant Bursar ( fARS)

Assistant Bursai

mstiure t - Agro  Tachnology & Rurat Scienc

University of Colembo
VWeligatta Hambantota

2013, 2012
Rs. Rs.
N.B.V N.B.V
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Bank Balances Note - 01 15,692,109 16,134,792
Stock Note - 02 4,346,416 3,996,429
Interest Receivable on Investments 144,293 128,723
RED Project Loan 779,619 1,152,459
Advance A/C 90,292 186,462
; 21,052,729 21,598,865
NON CURRENT ASSETS ,
Investments 33,594,075 20,232,617
Tissue Culture Laboratory Building - W. Note - 03 - 8,955,413
Building And Structures 18,087,596 1,132,423
Vehicles 5,525,280 7,109,540
Plant Machinery And Equipment 2,855,351 3,232,761
Fixtures and Fittings 278,759 314,926
Furniture And Office Equipment 1,706,999 1,104,306
Computers 686,356 483,689
Lab and Teaching Equipment 641,136 717,008
63,375,553 43,282,682
Total Assets 84,428,282 64,881,547
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Uoc Payable A/C - 927,306
Weligatte and RMU A/C - 1,148,144
Accrued Expences Note - 04 619,554 380,533
619,554 2,455,983
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deffered Income 370,000
Non Current Liabilities Note - 05 1,219,635 205,234
1,589,635 205,234
Total Liabilities 2,209,189 2,661,217
NET ASSETS 82,219,093 62,220,331
EQUITY
Capital Grant Spent 24,393,026 17,330,278
Capital Grant Unspent 42,641,977 36,730,728
Grant Spent 5,543,037 -
Restricted Funds Note - 06 - 220,303
Accumilated Funds 9,641,055 2,612,183
Institute Development Fund . 5,322,734
_ {Total Equity‘ . ’ 82,219,094 62,216,226
fied by Director (IARS)

For and on behalf of the Board of Management




INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
PRODUCTION , TRADE, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012
Rs. Rs.
Raw Material as at 01.01.2013 » 1,356,682 1,205,809
ADD: Purchases 178,160 341,648
1,534,842 1,547,457
Raw Material as at 31.12.2013 1,324,444 1,356,682
Raw Material Consumption During The year . 210,398 190,775
Direct Cost
Personnel Emoluments Note - 07 5,823,000 3,867,612
Prime Cost 6,033,398 ' 4,058,387
Add: Work In Progress as at 01.01.2013 896,464 221,584
Culture Bottles 32431
Less : Work In Progress as at 31.12.2013 871,674 896,464
Culture Bottles 31804 ' -
6,058,188 3,383,506
OVERHEADS
Water ' 79,374 77,749
Electricity : 960,903 874,858
Expenditure On Plant Sale 789,470 772,009
Cost Of Production 7,887,935 5,108,122
Number of Plants Produced during the year 2013 207883 207883 134,527
Unit Cost 37.94 38
Cost of production Transferred to Income And
Expenditure Account 7,887,935 5,108,122
Income from Sale of Plants 8,249,760 6,115,805
Cost of Sales
Banana plants as at 01.01.2013 8564 at
a unit cost of Rs.38/- 325,183 816,570
Add: Cost Of Production 7,887,935 5,108,122
‘ . ' 8,213,118 5,924,692
Banana plants as at 31.12.2013 20553
unit cost of Rs.38/- 779,865 325,183
7,433,253 5,599,509
Gross Profit 816,507 516,296



INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES

UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2013
(Figures adjusted to the Nearest Rupee)

REVENUE

Gross Profit

Govt. Grant for Recurrent Expenditure
Generated Income

Interest Income

Amortization

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENCES

Personal Emoluments
Travelling

Supplies

Maintenance Expenditure
Contractual Services
Other Recurrent Expenses
Gratuity

Depreciation

TOTAL EXPENCE -
SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD

2013 2012
Rs. Rs.
816,507 516,296
11,400,000 7,921,000
Note - 08 2,246,495 1,167,270
3,260,238 2,362,280

2,615,004

20,338,244 11,966,847
Note - 09 5,229,601 4,389,632
Note - 10 116,241 333,000
Note - 11 1,273,995 249,646
Note - 12 1,502,400 431,415
Note - 13 1,381,019 1,646,008
Note - 14 1,572,346 903,707
Note - 15 14,401 205,234
2,946,339 1,613,311
'14,036,343 9,771,953
6,301,901 | 2,194,894




INSTITUTE OF FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31ST 2013

Attributable to owners of the controlling entity Total Equity
Contributed Capital |Other Reserves |Accumilated Surplus
Balance at 01.01.2013 54,061,006 5,543,037 2,612,183 | 62,216,226
Prior Year
Adjustment - Note 16 726,970 726,970
Restated Balance 54,061,006 5,543,037 3,339,153 | 62,943,196
Changes in Equity for
Year 2013
Deficit/Surplus For
the period 12,973,996 - 6,301,901 | 19,275,898
Balance at 31.12.2013 )
- :q@rﬁed Forward - 67,035,002 5,5{3_,037 ) ~_5541,055 | 82,219,094 |



INSTITUTE OF FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCES

UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2013
: 2013
Excess for the year : 6,301,901
Add : Adjustments for items not involving movement of Funds
Depreciation 2,946,339
Provision For Gratuity 14,401
Amortization (2,615,004)
Interest Income (3,260,238) (2,914,502)
Operating excess before working capital changes 3,387,400
Increase in Stock - (349,987
Increase in Receivables 1,195,979
Increase in Payables (466,429)] - 379,563
Net cash flow from operating activities : . -3,766,963
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Fixed Assets ' (9,677,751)
Increace: in Investments {10,120,895)
(19,798,646)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Grant for Capital Expenditure 15,589,000
15,589,000
NET INCREASE IN CASH EQUIVALENTS (442,683)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 16,134,792
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period 15,692,109
Net Increase in Cash Equivalents (442,683)




Notes to the Financial Statement
Institute for Agro- Technology and Rural Sciences (IARS)
University Of Colombo

1. Significant Accounting Policies
1.1 Reporting Entity

IARS has been incorporated under the Ordinance No:02 of 2008 and gazette on 16™
October 2008. The main administration is at Weligaththe New Town, Hambanthota.
The Financial Statement of the IARS is prepared for the year ending 31/12/2013.

1.2 Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are prepared on the historical basis of accounting. Whereby
the transactions are recorded at values prevailing at the dated when the assets were
acquired, the liabilities were incurred and funds obtained in accordance with Sri
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Charted
Accountants of Sri Lanka. ‘

The firancial statements are prepared in Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the functional.
and presentation currency. Figures and phrases relating to tiie previous year have
been restated where necessary, for comparison with the current year presentation.

1.3 Assets and the bases of their valuation

1.3.1 Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Land is occupied to The Divisional Secretariat ,Lunugamwehera. It is rented
out by the Institute since 1998,for 30 years lease basis. Value of Buildings
And Structures is not shown in the Final Accounts. Only the cost of
rehabilitation is shown there. Valuation of Land And buildings is processing
with the assistance of Survey Department and Valuation Department.

Property Plant and Equipment and Lab & Teaching Equipments include the
items purchased out of government grant, research grants and internally
generated funds.

Property Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost of purchase together with
any incidental expenses thereon. The assets are shown at cost less
accumulated depreciation.



1.3.2

Subsequent Cost.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the institute and the cost of
items can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Stocks

Stock of Raw Materials, Stock of Work in Progress , Stock of Tissue Culture
Banana Plats as at 31.12.2013 are measured at the lower of cost and Net
Realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling
expenses. Stock Valuation method is First In First Out (FIFO) method.
Depreciation

Depreciation has been charged to the Statement of Financial performance on
all Property Plant & Equipment and Lab & Teaching Equipments on the
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Description Estimated useful Life
e Building & Structures - 20 years
e Fixtures & Fittings - 10 years
e Laboratory & Teaching Equipment - 5 years
e Computers - 5 Years
¢ Furniture And Office Equipments - 10 Years
e Plant Machinery And Equipments - 10 Years

Depreciation is provided from the year of purchased and up to the year of sale
based on the period used, with full depreciation being provided in the month
of purchase and no depreciation being provided in the month of sale.

1.3.3 Amortization

Amortization is not provided for the period of 2008 to 2012. The relevant amount
has been amortized in 2013 Final Accounts. Because of that, surplus of year 2013 is
increasing by Rs.1, 213,665.13.

1.3.4 Gratuity

Provision is made in the accounts for retirement of gratuities at rates applicable under
the payment of gratuity act No 12 of 1983 although employees should complete a
minimum period 05 years of continued employment to qualify for Gratuity payment
under the act. Provision is made at the complete one year of employment on the
assumption that all employees indent to continue in employment to act last 05 years.



1.4 Income and Expenditure

1.4.1 Government Grant
The total Capital Grant received for the year was Rs.10.089Mn. The Recurrent
Grants that have been used for the operational activities for the year was
Rs.11.4Mn and have been recognized as revenue in the Income Statement.

1.4.2 Revenue Recognition

(a) Government Grants (Recurrent)
The Government Recurrent grants are recognized in the period in which
they are received.

(b) Course Fees
Course fees are recognized over the period of instruction. Where adequate
information is not available to make such allocation to different financial
periods, fees are recognized as income on a cash basis.

(c) Investment Income

Interest income received out of Investment is accounted on accrued basis.

1.5 Receivables
~Receivables are stated at the amounts that they are estimater? to realize. -

1.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents comprise bank balances.

1.7 Current Assets

Current Assets classified in the balance sheet are those which will be recovered
within one year after the Balance Sheet date.

1.8 Current Liabilities
Liabilities classified as current liabilities in the balance sheet are those that fall due
for payment within one year from the Balance Sheet date. All known liabilities have
been accounted for in preparing the final statements.

1.9 Cash Flow Statement
The Cash flow statements have been prepared using the “Indirect Method” for the

purpose of the statement of Cash flow. Cash & Cash equivalents are comprised bank
balances.



Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Naote - 01

2012

2013 [
Bank Balances Rs.
(07-1001-4-6432005 - Plant Sale Collection Account
'8 Hambanthota 237,480 2,427,215
007-1001-3-0005888 - Cetificate Course Collection Ac 1,330,700 2,160,405
07-2-017-9-0005272 Avurudu :
Ganudenu [thurumpath 53,454 53,454
007-2-018-9-0005272 Avurudu
Ganudenu [thurumpath ' 53,454 53,454
007-1001-2-0005006 - Gov. Grant Current Account
13 Hambanthota 11,800,862 11,440,264
007100130012515 Farmers Trust Fund
1,010,000
007100236432005Generated Income Current Account 1,206,158
15,692,109 16,134,792
Note - 02 2013 | 2012
Stocks Rs.
Raw material 1,324,444 1,356,682
Work In Progress 871,674 896,464
Banana Plants 779,865 325,183
Consumable stock 1,370,432 1,418,099.23
4,346,416 3,996,429
Note - 04 2013 | 2012
Acerued Expences Rs.
Fleetriciry 101,412, 107,378
Waldr 11,167 9,626
Telephone 92,944 3,074
Sularies 76,225 36,875
PP 70,590 112,000
ETF 21,568 19,036
Holiday Payments 3,000
Domestic Travelling 3,900
F'uel & Lubricant 9,243
Muaintenance - Buildings 24,600
Maintenance - Vehicles 11,480
UPK 27,265
I*ension 5,406
Supplics-Chemicals & Glass ware 51,000
Over Time 12,275
{’xamination Expenditure 5,920
Printing And Advertising 51,408 42,819
Iield Visit Expenditure 900
{’ouncil And Committees 11,200
I'xpenditure On Extension Projects 12,900
I-xpenditure on Certificate Course 36,825
Prior Year Expenditure 7,200
{xpenditure On Plant Sale 10,800
‘{’vurse Fee Installments 5,000
University Executive officers Association 1,200
PAYEE TAX 3,851 .
619,554 380,533




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 05 2013 | 2012
Non Current Liabilities Rs.
Provision For Gratuity 219,635 205,234
Mr.W.M.K.Upuldeniya
Farmers Trust Fund 1,000,000
' 1,219,635 205,234
Note - 06 2013 . | 2012
Grants - 2013 Rs.
How can small Countries in South Asia - 220,303
- 220,303
Note - 07
2013 | 2012
Personal Emoluments Rs.
Salaries & Wages 5,089,700 3,144,400 |
E.PF 497,040 628,880
E.T.F. 124,260 94,332
Over Tisae Payment 112,000.00- S
5,823,000 3,867,612
Note - 08 2013 [ 2012
Generated Income Rs.
Certificate Course - IARS 2,230,140 1,151,000
Tissue Culture Banana Plant Sale Production Accq 8,249,760 -
Other Income 16,355 16,270
10,496,255 1,167,270
Note - 09
2013 | 2012
Personal Emoluments - Rs.
Salaries & Wages 3,775,255 3,044,200
E.P.F 855,152 | 565,113
UPF 215,294 88,667
Pension 67,906 48,122
E.TF. 119,612 100,974
Over Time Payment 34,883 53,236
Other Allowances 161,500 489,319
5,229,601 4,389,631




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 10
Travelling

Domestic
Foriegn

Note - 11

Supplies

Mechanical and Electrical Goods
Stationery & Office Requisites
Fuel and Lubricant

Chemicals And Glass Ware
Other

Note - 12
Maintenance Expenditure

Plant, Machinery Equipment
Furniture

Vehicles

Buildings & Structures

Other

Note - 13
Contractual Services

‘Transport .
Postal & Telecommunication
Electicity

Water

Cleaning Service

Rates, Taxes & Local Authorities
Other Contractual Services
Printing, Advertising etc.

2013 | 2012
Rs.
116,241 225,895
- 107,106
116,241 333,001
2013 | 2012
Rs.
171,938 3,075.00
176,876 | 125,178
448,345 117,732
178,160 -
476,836 3,661
1,273,995 249,646
2013 l 2012
Rs.
306,274 71,890
126;000
500,611 229,649
540,255 93,105
35,260 36,771
1,502,400 431,415
2013 | 2012
Rs.

31,340 11,400
389,469 109,399
211,300 483,107

79,374 36,872

- 3,500

- 120,000
142,930 193,816
526,606 687,915
1,381,019 1,646,009




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 14
Other Recurrent Expenditure 2013 | 2012
Rs.

Awards & Indeminities 54,028

Special Services - Board Meeting & Committs 324,618 86,966

Workshops, Seminars 254,547 109,471

Bank Charges 6,469 7,780

Expenditure on Extension Courses 59,263 371,083

Expenditure on Certifictre Courses IARS 548,832 226,236

Expenditure on Plant Sale 789,470 -

Staff Development 19,925 -

Expenditure on RED 119,708 -

Expenditure On Mushroom Sales 27,985 768

Acting Director's Fee 82,000 -

Examination Expenditure 27,470 34,500

Field Visit Expenditure 74,980 12,875

Other 26,550 -

1,572,346 903,707
Note - 15
Gratuity
Calculation Of Gratuity
Last Month
Gratuity

Employee Employee |Date of Period of service|applicable Gratuity

Name Number |Appoinment [as at 31.12.2013 |Salary (Rs) Amount (Rs)

WMK

Upuldeniya C007183 01.06.2000 13 Years 33,790.00 14,401.00

Note - 16

Prior Year Adjustment for Accumilated Surplus

This total Amount included follwing income and expenditure

Adjusted Income

6/28/2011 Rec 000785 Cancelled Cheque 7,360

6/28/2011 Rec 000786 Cancelled Cheque 196,560

7/28/2011 Rec 000787 Cancelled Cheque 2,900
'{10/7/2011 Rec 000788 Cancelled Cheque 720

11/15/2011 Rec 000789 Cancelled Cheque 5,000

12/31/2013 JUR RMU 79,534

12/24/2013 Rec 000623 UOC - RMU 442,096

Adjusted Expenditure

12/31/2013 JUR TIARS70 Accrued Expences (7,200)

726,970




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Notes to the Financial Statements - 2013 (Contd..)

Note - 03
Non Current Assets
WIP Tissue |Building Vehicles Lab and Computers Plant Machinery & |Fixtures and |Furniture and Total
Description Culture Lab |& Structures Teaching Equipment fittings Office Equipment
|Non Current Assets :
Balance as at 01/01/2013 8,955,413 1,144,218 7,921,300 1,028,132 705,880 3,583,487 361,665 1,336,137 | 25,036,232
Additions/ Improvements (8,955,413) 17,374,704 - 148,702 369,500 - - 740,257 9,677,751
|Disposals '
Total - 18,518,922 | 1,176,834 3,583,487 361,665 2,076,394 | 34,713,983
Provision for Depreciation
Rate of Depreciation 5% 20% 20% 20% 10% 10% 10%
IBalance as at 01/01/2013 - 11,794 811,760 311,124 222,191 350,727 46,739 231,831 1,986,165
Depreciation for the year - 419,532 1,584,260 224,574 166,834 367,879 36,166 147,094 2,946,339
Acc dep for Disposals : -
Balance as at 31/12/2013 - 431,326 2,396,020 535,698 389,024 728,136 82,905 369,395 4,932,504
- 18,087,596 5,525,280 641,136 686,356 2,855,351 278,759 1,706,999 | 29,781,478

INet Book Value- 31/12/2013




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Short Term Investment Schedule As At 31.12.2013

EST NEW INTERES INTERES [MA
ME RATE DEPOSITS |NO T NET T RK
NT DATE OF DATE OF OF DURING OF |INTEREST |RECEIV [INTEREST |RECEIV |S/ |INVESTMEN
INS INVESTMEN |[MATURIT INTER THE YEAR |DA (RECEVED |ABLE RECEIVED |ABLE WI |[TS AS AT
TIT |DEPOSIT NO T Y PERIOD EST |AMOUNT (2013 TE |FoR2013 2012 FOR 2013 |FOR 2013|TH |31.12.2013 RS
|086-6001-00006309- |12/20/2012 3/20/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006310- [12/20/2012 3/20/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006311- 112/20/2012 20.03.2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 2,290,008 11 306,063 10,007 296,056 7,433 | - 2,596,071
086-6001-00006312- |12/20/2012 20.03.2014 |3 MONTHS 9.5%| 1,145,004 11 153,032 5,004 148,028 3,716 | - 1,298,036
076-6001-00002440- 111.08.2011 11.08.2013 |12 MONTHS | 10.5%| 1,080,000 142 135,000 52,521 82,479 49,632 | - 1,215,000
086-6001-00006474- 112/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006475- 112/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006476- |12/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 2,195,000 9 351,200 8,660 342,540 6,906 | - 2,546,200
086-6001-00006477- |12/22/2012 22.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%] 3,292,500 9 526,800 12,990 513,810 10,359 | - 3,819,300
086-6001-00006484- 112/27/2012 27.12.2014 |12 MONTHS | 11.0%| 1,260,088 4 201,614 2,209 199,405 1,762 | - 1,461,702
007-6001-00003168- 117.12.13 3/17/2014 |3 MONTHS 9.0% 1,755,421 | 14 43,765 - 43,765 6,210 | # 1,799,186
007-6001-00003169- {17.12.13 17-3-14 3 MONTHS 9.0% +1,639,424 | 14 40,873 - 40,873 5,800 | # 1,680,297
007-6001-00003170- |17.12.13 17-3-14 3 MONTHS 9.0% 6,726,050 | 14 167,691 167,691 23,797 | # 6,893,741
20,232,617 | 10,120,895 3,240,564 | 128,723 | 3,111,841 | 144,293 | # 33,594,076




UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO-TECHNOLOGY & RURAL SCIENCE

Chemicals
DEPARTMENT : AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 Date of Checked : Time of Check :
proe Full Description of Ariiles Stock, | Unit Rate Verfied Balance Shortage Excess Trews 8o be condemnd obsolete Hm [Remarks
No. Book.
Inventory Book Balince
Folio Quantity _
[Quantity | Value
|rs. o IRs. {Cs JQuantity  Jvalue Quantity  [Value Quantity  Jvalue
1]Ammonium Nitrate 1|ikg 6608 00]16.3350kg ]16.3350kg 107941] 68
2]Ascorbic Acid 3li50g 1848] 00)35g 35g 431] 20
3 100g | 4500 oojioog 100g 4500} 00
4|Boric Acid 51100g 798} 00}307.64g 307.64g 24548 96
${Calcium Chloride Thkg 2472§ 00]268g 268g 662] 49
6 lkg 3696] 00]4kg dkg 14784} 00
7 lkg 2688) 00]1ke 1kg 2688} 00
8 9}12¢g 546| 00j378.952g {378.952g 17242} 32
11j12g 294] 00]508.95 508.95 12469} 27
13Q24g 798] 00j434g 434g 14430} 50
15§11 343§ 00j1271 1271 43561} 00
17}5g 3136] 00}4.8688 4.8688 3053 71
19}500g 1740] 0o]1500g 1500g s220] oo
soog | 2320] oo]s00g 500g 2320{ 00
21 1451 0048891 18891 128905§ 00
23}12g 728| 00]328.50g 328.50g 19928) 99
25)12¢ 475§ 00]173.34¢ 173.34g 6861 37
27|12 700] 00J31.50¢ 31.50g 1837 49
29§500g 10804 00}12.275kg 12.275kg 26514] 00
500g 2133} 00}5kg Skg 21330] 00
3ifasog | 1100] 0of374g 374g 1645) 60
250g 1344§ 00j250g 250g 1344} 00
500g 1000] 00}500g 500g 1000} 00
3|12g 1080] 00]554.52 554.52 49906| 30
37|250g 1500] 00§481.2g 481.2g 2887] 20
250g | 2016] 00j250g 250g 2016} oo
39]500¢g 1680] 00]943.58 943 5g 3170f 16
500g 2240' 00R2kg 2kg 8960} 00
41)500g 1080] 00}1459g 1459g 3151) 44
43]500g 9419} 00}454.64g 454.64g 8564| 69
45]500g 2100] 004395.28¢ 395.28g 16600 17
47]25g 1080} 00§184.7g 184.7g 7919 4
49]sg 4900] 00]4325g 4.325g 4238] s0
sifsg 2250] 0o]og 9g 4450] 00
53|58 1800| 00j23g 238 8280] 00
551500 15201 00| 400g 1216 UUI
37} Adenine Sulphate s7l2s0g | 3600 00j10.25 1025 147] 60
38} Ammonium Sulphate 59]500g 1120] 00]500g 500g 11201 00
39]Potassium Nitrite 61§500g 3040] 00]1kg kg 6080] 00
40]Mayo Innositol 63]258 1350] 00j11g g 594] o0
41]Buffer Tablets-pH 07 65§10 No's 880] 00}40 40 35201 00
42|Buifer Tablets-pH 04 67]10 No's 660] 00|17 17 1122§ 00




Trem Full Description of Amticles Stock, | Unit 3 Verificd Balance Shonay Exccess Trems to be Ttem JRemark
No. Book,
Inventory Book Balance
Folio Quantity _
Quantity | Valus
[rs. o= Irs. Cis. [Quantity  [Value Quantity  [Value Quantity  [Value
43{pH 6.8 Solution 69]500mi 1140 00}1301 1301 296} 40
44|KCL Solution 711500ml 1680] 00§370ml 370ml 1243} 20
45 iclly Moss 73| 1kg 3700} 00]60kg 60kg 2220001 00
46 kg 4233| 33}10kg 10kg 42333] -30
47]Cotton Wool 75500 425] 00}64.5Kg 64.5Kg 54825] 00
48jRubber Band 77|k 890] 00}59Kg 59Kg 52510} 00
49)Zealing Wrap 7911 Roll | 1700} 003 3 5100] 00
50 1 Roll 1900} 00§70 70 133000] 00
51§12 Poly Propelcen 83]ikg 2251 00]13.4Kg 13.4Kg 30154 00
52|6" Polypropelene 85]lke 330] 00}102kg 102kg 33660] 00
53 kg 300} 00§62.55kg |62.55kg 18765} 00
54]36" Poly Tunnel 871k 330| 00192Kg 192Kg 63360} 00
55 1kg 280} oof2ss 7Kg [258.7Kg 72436] 00
56))am Bottles ) 89} pkt 1069] 65}55 55 58830 75
57}Jam Bottles Lids Plastic 91 12§ 00]240 240 2880f 00
Total 13244431 83
Store Keeper of Office in Charger :
of Stores or Inventory Name $.V.G.N. Priyadarshani Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature : . Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date Net Shortages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR
. 2. H. Rohanadheera RA
3.N.P. Videnapathirana ~ CC

% .




Sucker
Bottle
Lid
Chemicals

20
16.71
8.75
1.61

se
1

47.07
So

S0
S1
S2
S3
sS4
S5
S6
S7
S8
S9
S10
S11
S12
S13

16.71
8.75
1.61
s1
1
27.07
Sucker
Jam Bottle
Jam Lid
Chemicals

16.71
8.75
1.61

27.07
20
16.71

1.61

47.32
47.07
74.14
51.78
32.82
28.29
2742
27.18
27.11
27.08
27.08
27.07
27.07
27.07
27.07

27.46
27.46

Institute for Agro-Technology And Rural Sciences

University Of Colombo
Cost Calculation Report
Work In Progress Stock As At 31.12.2013
16.71 . 16.71 16.71 16.71 16.71 16.71
8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.75
1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61 1.61
5 7l §5 5 4 58
9 27 81 243 729 2187

27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07 27.07

16.71
8.75
1.61

6561
27.07

1671  16.71 16.71
8.75 8.75 8.75
1.61 1.61 1.61

sto si1 s12
19683 59049 177147
2707 2707  27.07

16.71
8.75
1.61

813

531441

27.07



UNIVERSITY OF CO" “MBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECF  OLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCE

STOCK OF WORK IN PROGRESS

DEPARTMENT: - AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2013 Date of Check: 31.12.2013
Time of Check:
Item No. Full Stock, Unit Rate Book Verified Balance ghon.Ege Excess ftems to be condemd obsolete item Remarks
Description off Book, Batance ;
Articles Inventory Quantity
Folio
: ST
Rs. Cts. _ Rs. | Cis. | Quantity jVaiu Quantit] Value Quantity Value
. . y

11so 40 47.07 1,883 | -

2181 14 74.14 1,038 | ~

3|s2 9 51.78 466 | -

4lsa 39 3282 : 1,280 | -

51s4 50 2829 1,414 | -

6lss 122 2742 3345 | -

7lss 459 27.18 124771 -

8ls7 920 27.11 24940 | -

olss 2306 27.08 62,454 § -

10]s9 1888 27.08 SLIBY -

11§s10 3027 27.07 81948 | -

lsit 442 27.07 11,966 | -

13lsiz2 451 27.07 12,209 -

14]513 0 27.07 - -

I 22037 2746 605,136 | -

16|R2 0 27.46 - -

31804 0] 871,674 ] -

Store Keeper of Office in :
Charger of Storesor ~ Name : S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature ) Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date : Net Shoreages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR
: 2. H. Rohanadheera RA

3. N.P. Vidanapathirana CcC



* UNIVERSITY OF COLOMBO - INSTITUTE FOR AGRO - TECHNOLOGY AND RURAL SCIENCE |

DEPARTMENT:

STOCK OF TISSUE CULTURE BANANA PLANTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2013

Date of Check: 31.12.2013

Time of Check:
ltem No. Full Stock, Unit Rate Book Verified Balance Shortage Excess Tlems o be condemd obsolete item ] Remarks
Description of] Book, Balance
Articles Inventory Quantity
Folio
JQuantity ia!ue
Rs. Cts. Rs. Cts. ]| Quantity [ Valu Qua | Value Quantity Value
¢ ntity .
1|Embul 37 94 16906 16906 641,414
2|Koli 7| o4 u23 1123 42,607
3|DC 37 94 2524 2524| 95,761
L1
20553 779865
Store Keeper of Office in
Charger of Storesor ~ Name : S.V.G.N. Priyadarshani . Total Shortages / Excess Value Checked by
Signature : . Total Shortages / Excess Value Name Post Signature
Date Net Shortages / Excess Value 1. W.M.K. Upuldeniya AR

2. H. Robanadheera RA
3. N.P. Vidanapathirana CC




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Unsettled Advance Schedule As At 31.12.2013

Date V/No Derscription Amount

24/12/2013 74A 767524 . - |H.Rohanadeera 10,000.00
10/11/2013 542 664259  |H.R.S.D.W.Alwis 26,000.00
10/9/2013 530 664247  [H.R.S.D.W.Alwis 23,295.50
4/212013 190 745848  |A.A.S.Chinthanie(Festival Advance) 1,000.00
2/28/2013 102 745765  |HR.S.D.W.Alwis 30,000.00

Total

90,295.50




Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Lab And Teaching Equipment

Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo

Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati| Depreciation
Name Capitalized Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/1/2013 1,028,132 | 11.7419355 20% 205,626
Additions/ Improvements Water Distillation Unit 8-May-13 148,702 | 7.64516129 20% 18,948
Total 1,176,834 224,574
Computers
Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
Capitalized Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2012 705,880 12 20% 141,176
Additions/ Improvements Computer 6/24/2013 186,000 6 20% 18,600
Laptop 11/19/2013 123,500 1 20% 2,058
Laptop 8/5/2013 60,000 5 20% 5,000
Total 1,075,380 166,834
Fixtures And Fittings
Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati| Depreciation
Capitalized Amount (Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2013 361,665 12 10% 36,166
361,665 36,166

Total




Institute for Agro Technology anﬁ Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Furniture And Office Equipments

Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
Capitalized Amount ( Months) | onRate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2011 1/1/2013 1,336,137 12 10% 133,614
Additions/ Improvements Computer Chair 5/21/2013 4,750 7 10% 286
Computer Table 5/21/2013 3,400 7 10% 205
Computer Chair 5/30/2013 9,750 7 10% 564
Computer Table 5/30/2013 9,980 7 10% 577
Office Table 5/30/2013 13,520 7 10% 781
Office Chair 5/30/2013 9,980 7 10% 577
Conference Semi circle Table + 10/10/2013 84,481 3 10% 1,862
Conference Extension Table ©10/10/2013 123,813 3 10% 2,729
OCL 003 mid Back Chair . 10/10/2013 174,563 3 10% 3,848
OCH 014 High Back Chair 10/10/2013 9,428 3 10% 208
Executive Table 11/19/2013 66,578 1 10% 752
Executive Chair 11/19/2013 10,508 1 10% 119
Clerical Table 11/19/2013 6,219 1 10% 70
Computer Chair 11/19/2013 3,220 1 10% 36
Filling Cabinet Steel 04 drawers 11/19/2013 10,360 1 10% 117
Writing Table 11/19/2013 18,768 1 10% 212
Digital Photocopier (Toshiba e-
studio195/duplex Printing) 4/9/2013 133,280 8.58 10% 9,530
Computer Chair 11/19/2013 22,785 1 10% 257
Writing Table 11/19/2013 24,876 1 10% 281
Total 2,076,394 156,624




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences University of Colombo
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

Buildings And Structures
! Depreciatio
Date of _ _ nPeriod | Depreciati| Depreciation |
Capitalized Amount (Months) | on Rate Amount
1/0/1900 1,144,218 12 5% 37211
1:2472013 97,510 11 5% 4469
1/24/2013 27,020 11 5% 1238
2/7/2013 5,400 11 5% 237
2/7/2013 13,200 11 5% 580
2/7/2013 1,350 11 5% 59
2/7/2013 14,850 11 5% 653
2/7/2013 18,150 11 5% 798
2/7/2013 5,850 11 5% 257
2/7/2013 314,944 11 5% 13842
2/8/2:13 15,935 11 5% 698
3/1/2013 2,000 10 5% 82
3/11/2013 24,600 10 5% 975
3/11/2013 9,000 10 5% 357
3/13/2013 11,100 9 5% 437
41212013 23,000 9 5% 844
4/4/2653 9,000 9 5% 328
4/4/2013 10,500 9 5% 382
4/19/2013 121,950 8 5% 4196
4/19/2013 15,300 8 5% 526
4/19/2913 16,500 8 5% 568
4/19/2013 5,500 8 5% 189
4/19/2013 4,500 8 5% 155
15-May-13 5,500 7 5% 170
10-Jun-13 2,480 7 5% 68
25-Jun-13 760 6 5% 19
5-Aug-13 16,598,805 5 5% 330191
Total 18,518,922 419,532




Institute for Agro Technology and Rural Sciences
Schedule For Depreciation For Year 2013

University of Cblombo

Vehicles
£ Depreciatio
Date of n Period | Depreciati | Depreciation
i Capitalized. Amount ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/172013 7,921,300 11.74| 20% 1,584,260
Total 7,921,300 1,584,260
Piant Machinery And Equipment
Depreciatio
Date of - nPeriod | Depreciati| Depreciation
Capitalized Amount’ ( Months) | on Rate Amount
Balance as at 01/01/2012 1/1/2013 3,583,487 11.74 10%  358,348.73
3,583,487 - 2 358,349
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Director,

Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Science

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Institute for Agro-Technology
and Rural Science affiliated to the University of Colombo for the year ended 31 December 2013
in terms of Section 27 of Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Science Ordinance No.02 of
2008 and Section 108(1) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

The audit of financial statements of the Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Science
affiliated to the University of Colombo for the year ended 31 December 2013 comprising the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes was carried out
under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with Section 13(1) of the
Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 and Section 27 of the University of Colombo Institute for Agro-
Technology and Rural Science Ordinance No. 02 of 2008 enacted in terms of Section 18 of the
Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978 and Sub-section 107(5) of the Universities Act. My comments
and observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the Institute in
terms of Sub-section 108(1)) of the Universities Act appear in this report.

1.2 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for
such internal control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or
error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards consistent
with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI 1000-1810). Those

“Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgements, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Institute’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
financial statements. Sub-sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the Finance Act, No. 38
of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to determine the scope and the
extent of the audit.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report.
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02.  Financial Statements

2.1 Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in paragraph 2:2 of this
report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Institute for Agro-Technology and Rural Science Affiliated to the University of
Colombo as at 31 December 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 Accounting Deficiencies

The following observations are made.

(@ As revealed during the audit test checks, expenditure and accrued expenditure of
the year under review had been overstated by Rs.72,167 due to the expenditure of
the year 2014 had been accounted as the expenditure of the year 2013.

(b) Four buildings of 3848 square feet belonging to the Institute had not been
assessed and included in the financial statements .

2.2.2  Non —compliance with Laws, Rules , Regulations and Management Decisions

The following non-compliances were observed.

Reference to Laws, Rules, Regulations etc Non-compliance
(a) Public Finance Circular No.25 of A sum of Rs.33,594,075 had been invested
29 June 2004 without the approval of the Treasury.
(b) Treasury Circular No.1A/2002/02 of A Register of Computer Accessories and
. 28 November 2002 Software had not been maintained.
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Financial Review

Financial Results

According to the financial statements presented, the working of the Institute for the year
ended 31 December 2013 had resulted in a surplus of Rs.6,301,901 as compared with the
corresponding surplus of Rs.2,194,894 for the preceding year. The increase of the
surplus for the year under review by a sum of Rs.4,107,007 as compared with the

preceding year had been due to the increase of Government grants by Rs.3,479,000.

Operating Review

Performance
The following observations are made.

(a) Thirty five employees recruited on the assignment basis existed as at 31
December 2013 and 11 employees out of them had completed service period over

5 years and the service period had been extended year by year.

(b)  Action had not been taken to maintain an approved staff for all the employees
deployed in the Tissue Culture Laboratories and Green-houses who provide direct
contribution to produce tissue culture banana plants and the officers who carried

out operating and supervision activities .

Accountability and Good Governance

Corporate Plan

Even though the Corporate Plan in terms of Public Enterprises Circular No.PED/12 of
02 June 2003 should be prepared and obtained the approval of the Board of management
before the year under review for use in the operations of the Institute effectively and as a

guidance, action had not been taken accordingly.
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Action Plan

An Action Plan had not been prepared before the year under review in a manner to assign
responsibilities to the officers for the financial and operating performance. As such the
objectives and targets expected for achievement in the year 2013 and the financial and

physical progress thereof could not be examined in audit.

Systems and Controls

Deficiencies in system and controls observed during the course of audit were brought to
the notice of the Director of the Institute from time to time. Special attention is needed in

respect of the following areas of control.

(a) Fixed Assets Control
(b) Accounting for Course Income and Expenditure.

(©) Advances Control

W.P.C Wickramaratne,

Acting Auditor General





